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Five-year Financial Summary

EFEHBERE

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of Peiport Holdings Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below:

HETENEELYBRABERAREEE
5,/ EF D BORFERERRR ([RRF])
REMB AR (G AEE ) RBEDER
BEENEE  BE  AERIFERESOR
2T

RESULTS Ef
Year ended 31 December
BET-A=t-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—B--f _Z_-F i S 33 —T-NE ZEN\F
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TET TAT TAT
REVENUE &= 245,612 279,371 290,590 275,354 262,080
Gross profit E7 72,129 82,351 83,256 93,142 94,055
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX  F#iAl (&5i8) /%A (5,267) 19,911 32,538 36,344 19,806
Income tax credit/(expense) FEHES/ (%) 1,659 (3,171) (5,352) (6,031) (8,299)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR £ (&18) /%7 (3,608) 16,740 27,186 30,313 11,507
Attributable to owners RARHE AES
of the parent (3,195) 16,982 27,186 30,313 11,507
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- BE BERFERERS
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=A=t-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—F--F —F-F ZEITFR ZENF 0 ZF)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET THEL FET TET
Total assets BEE 419,779 432,486 405,506 360,117 256,446
Total liabilities BEE (67,337) (67,311) (54,223) (38,785) (71,132)
Non-controlling interests JERRRaE S (245) (658) - - -
352,197 364,517 351,283 321,332 185,314
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Corporate Information (Continued)

NAEER(R)
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Chairman’s Statement
x fE 2E

| mF. axnunman

WEREESE |

Dear valuable shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, | hereby report to the
shareholders on the operations of the three major business
segments of the Group in 2022, including: (1) thermal
imaging products and services; (2) self-stabilised imaging
products and services; and (3) general aviation products and
services.

HEHOBR -

AANERERARFER(EFG(EFE))
RARBRRMERN S —_FREE=KXE
BRBAE LB - EF BN AKEER
KBRS : (2 B EAREEm MR - & (3)8
PR 22 2 dn B AR A
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TREEE (E)

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2022

In 2022, the Group had experienced ups and downs and
faced great difficulty and perplexing situation overall, and the
results did not meet our expectations, mainly due to the
impact brought about by the temporary closure of our major
offices in Mainland China in the fourth quarter of the year
due to the 2019 Coronavirus Disease (“COVID-19")
outbreak. During this difficult year, revenue from our general
aviation products and services continued to grow. In line
with the multi-year growth in this business segment, the
Group has added the manpower to expand the market and
related technical capabilities during the year. In Hong Kong,
we added sales staff to support and complement the work
of our sales team. In Zhuhai, we also recruited technical
staff to strengthen the development of aviation products and
repair tools and to expand our repair services.

Meanwhile, to expand the sales of our thermal imaging
products and services business segment in Hong Kong, we
have expanded the site area of our research and
development and system product manufacturing centre in
Hong Kong, and strengthened our research and
development team to meet the demand of the business.

In addition, in 2022, the Group had distributed the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 to reward
our shareholders for their support to the Group.

BUSINESS PROSPECT FOR 2023

As the Year of the Rabbit just begun, there is good news
that anti-epidemic measures against COVID-19 is finally
coming to an end and the overall economic downturn is
expected to improve. The Group will use this opportunity to
focus on our three major business segments and expand on
new products and projects, especially the general aviation
products and services, both in terms of marketing and
product development efforts, and will make greater
investments in this business segment.

PEIPORTHOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SE

RZTZZF AEENEBKRERIK - 258
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREEE (EF)

(1) Thermal imaging products and services

(2)

As more thermal imaging products are produced
domestically in Mainland China, this brings down the
prices thereof. The Group will strengthen its research
and development team in Hong Kong and Guangzhou,
and put its efforts in product development, producing
more high-end products with its own technology, so as
to continue to dominate the market of thermal imaging
products and services in Mainland China and Hong
Kong, and retain and increase the sales or technical
staff in both offices in Mainland China and Hong Kong
fittingly. The Group will continue to strengthen its sales
network and market expansion capabilities in Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou, Chengdu, Xi'an, Wuhan and
Yunnan, and expand the sales network of each office
to cover the six regions in Northern, Northeast,
Northwest, Eastern, South-Central and Southwest
China, reaching out to each provincial administrative
region to proactively expand the sales of the business
segment.

In addition, while making full use of the Group's
excellent sales market and network in Mainland China
and Hong Kong, the Group will begin to explore the
sales market in Southeast Asian countries in 2023, and
will conduct site visits to explore in attempt to promote
the Group's own technology products. At the same
time, we will also send our staff to Europe and the
United States to learn more about the new technology
products for the benefit of our research and
development department and our market development
staffers.

Self-stabilised imaging products and services

In 2023, in addition to maintaining our existing
customer base, the Group will strive to develop new
products and pursue new customers in the self-
stabilised imaging products and services business
segment.

(1)

(2)

BRBREmRRE

o B 7 3t 7 B R 7 O R K R E o L 2R
% BROBERBE -  AEEGIERE
BEMTEBERNES - IRER
ENHE  HETZSABIRMSNH
EmEHEEERRNERERMRENE
AMBAETS  RELEEZNEA R
FEBMBRENHEABIKIMAE -
HEMBRASERILR - £& - BN
PR AR RERERZHERS R
WEMISHEESD » YIRS R EREE
WELL - RIb - AL - FER-F@E-A
MOANAREBEENHERS - RAZ
FEERITHE - EBHRRERE
IRIBAYEHE TAE ©

SN EREDFAAREREARTME L
REFMNEHTSMRERE  KAEEK
R-ZE-_-—HARRREDERNHE
M5 KETEMER  #HALERE
EASEN S ERMER - BiLFE -
&k B 2 B3R T I5 B B % 3R A
Em - AEMHEIFMAMEEMSHE
MABEE -

BRERGEmERE

R-ZF-_=F AREEEBREKRKE
X RIGE IR L - IRIBERPIIRA
MEFR 2N B EXR D EHEN
B EMMBEIHEP o
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FREEE (E8)

(3)

China’'s major electricity consumers are still
concentrated in the Eastern, Southeast and Central
regions, while most of the energy bases are located in
the Southwest and Northwest China. Other than
nuclear power, other sources of power such as
hydroelectric, thermal, solar and wind power are all
sent from west to east. The situation is unlikely to
change significantly in the next decade, and the
number of high-voltage and ultra-high-voltage
transmission lines from west to east is increasing,
bringing up the demand for inspection and repair
businesses, especially for thermal and mechanical
failures on the lines which require regular inspection
and maintenance. Due to the flight range, load capacity
and safety issues, the current drone technology cannot
replace the use of helicopters equipped with stable
infrared visible light systems for long-duration and long-
range inspection. The Group has been providing
accurate self-stabilised imaging products and services
for nearly 20 years, and the quality of our products is
excellent. In the coming year, we will actively strive for
strong collaboration with companies with marketing
capabilities to expand our market share, and strive for
more orders in 2023.

General aviation products and services

Development of the general aviation industry is in full
swing in Mainland China, especially aircrafts for
industrial, agricultural, firefighting, logistics and flight
school applications. In the past, most of these aircraft
were imported, but in the past few years, the emphasis
has been placed on domestic production, resulting an
increase in demand for our light and ultra-light aviation
engines. In the coming year, we will invest more
resources, including technical and sales teams, in
general aviation product sales and services, and will
expand our inventory to meet the increased demand
for general aviation products in 2023.

As the pandemic near its end, the Group will be more
aggressive in promoting the business segment in 2023,
and will equip our sales and technical teams to tackle
the supply shortage, thus significant sales growth is
expected in the coming year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ETREEE (E)

APPRECIATION

In the Year of the Tiger, the tiger returns to the mountain,
and in the Year of the Rabbit, the golden rabbit welcomes
spring. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all the staff members of Peiport for
their hard work and outstanding contributions in 2022. |
would also like to express the Board's gratitude to you and
your family for the support, understanding and care to the
Group in all aspects of our work.

The Board would also like to express its sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their continuous support, care,
tolerance and love to the Group. At the same time, we
would also like to thank our customers for their support and
assistance.

In 2023, the Group will continue to move forward in the
direction we have set and strive for better results to reward
our shareholders, employees, customers and the society.
Thank youl!

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023

GRS

TERF  BEFL  XINKF  2RilE-
BERREZgRFFEEREE TREME
TECFMFEHPBNNERERRTHRN
HE - WASRBBMM—EHAEEMN
B EMANEE  RRNtbEEEESERMK
AR 26 - #ERM—EES A EFAR
EBHTE -

Elt - EFEHH REHRE S AREN
SH - BID  BBREE - AF - bEHES
HRMEOT TR - B |

o= ARBEERSEETERTENT
[ - BB ARITT - FERASE G0 A8 B AR -
BIRET - QHREF - QLR - HH |

BRELE
FERHATEF

EE —E-_=—F=-A-+hH

BERERERAT /2022 F



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN W&

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of thermal
imaging products and services, self-stabilised imaging
products and services, and general aviation products and
services in the Mainland China and Hong Kong.

2022 has been a challenging year. During the year under
review, the Group operating performance was adversely
impacted by subdued demand in the thermal imaging
products and services, stemming from market volatilities
arising from resurgence of the pandemic, international
geopolitical tensions and global economic conditions. As a
result, during the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded a decrease in revenue of approximately HK$33.8
million to approximately HK$245.6 million and incurred loss
attributable to owners of the parent of approximately HK$3.2
million.

During the year, the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
continued to pose challenges to our business operations,
including our employees, customers and partners,
particularly in Mainland China. Mainland China continued to
adopt a dynamic zero COVID-19 policy in response to the
pandemic in the first half of 2022. Affected by recurring
pandemic waves as well as large-scale lockdowns and
controls, the consumption in the market have been
suppressed.

In view of the challenging economic environment, the Board,
as disclosed in the announcement dated 18 October 2022,
considered that there is a more imminent need of the Group
to enhance the recognition and qualifications of the Group's
products and strengthen the sales capacity and capture new
sales opportunities in Hong Kong, Mainland China and other
locations and therefore resolved to reallocate the unutilised
net proceed from the listing of the Company’'s shares (the
“Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as set out in the
section headed “Use of Proceeds” on pages 18 to 20 of this
annual report (the “Annual Report”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRRE D (&)

PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS

A summary of revenue from different business segments of
the Group is set out below:

(1)

(2)

Sale of thermal imaging products and
provision of services

Our products and services in this business segment
can broadly be divided into three categories: (i) products
under our own brand name, PTi; (i) products of other
brands; and (iii) thermal imaging inspection services.
Our products are widely used in general consumption,
commercial and industrial fields.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue
from this business segment reduced by 33.2% on a
year-to-year basis. It is mainly due to the weak demand
in sales of ultraviolet cameras, SF6 gas imaging
cameras and ultrasonic products from our existing
customers.

Revenue from this business segment during the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$76.5
million (2021: HK$114.6 million). It accounted for
approximately 31.2% (2021: 41.1%) of the Group’s
revenue during the year.

Sale of self-stabilised imaging products and
provision of services

The products in this business segment are designed to
be mounted on moving platforms such as aircraft,
helicopters, vessels and ships. The Group deploys a
self-stabilisation technology whereby the imaging
products are mounted on a multiple-axis gimbaled
structure and achieve maximum stabilisation. The
products are traded under own brand name, SkyEye,
SeaVision and PGs. We also rent our self-stabilised
imaging products for aircraft to our customers for a
fixed period at a rental fee as well as provide product
training and technical assistance to our customers
based on their requirements.

EBRRAKRE

ATRARETREBRBA WS FHE -

(1)

(2)

HERKGERKRHERE

BTE 2 E AR BR A R & AR TS K 3R AT
DAE=HE: ()RMEEREPTINER :
(ii) Eo G R A EE 5 ¢ K (i) BVAK 15 BRI AR

e BPMERBECERR—BHEE -

[SEJSEEToE 30

BE_T_—H+_A=t—HL*F
€ KB F %R H s iR R
332% - EXZHRNRART P HKING
BEH  SFORBARE NBBINE M
B 5 6 75 SRS

HE-_T-—_F+-A=1+—HLHF
E - REZEBRENKEHE7658
BETL(ZTZE-—F 1 1146B85L)
HAEERAFERZNL31.2% (ZF
T—F 1 411%) °

HEBRENGERRREHKRSE

ZEBRRNERSERRENBEH T
aplmm  EA% - mES) Eimk
e AEBERBRERM - BHKEE
mMEBEZHPEHERE - WEBEAKA
REMNSTEL - EmHUAKMEEmE
(SkyEye - SeaVision & PGs) 22 5 ° H 1M
TEREEHBHERSEEBEXNGE
MTEPREMEEER  UAREZERBRE
FEX - mERHERFII LR <X -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRRE D (&)

PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
(Continued)

(2)

(3)

Sale of self-stabilised imaging products and
provision of services (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue
from this business segment raise 3.9% on a year-to-
year basis. Revenue from this business segment during
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$50.9 million (2021: HK$49.0 million). It accounted
for approximately 20.7% (2021: 17.5%) of the Group's
revenue during the year.

Sale of general aviation products and provision
of services

The services and products in this business segment
can be broadly divided into three categories, namely (i)
light and ultra-light aircraft engines and related
components distribution; (ii) maintenance training
courses; and (iii) maintenance and support services.
Our maintenance training courses and maintenance
and support services are mainly carried out in our
maintenance centre with a gross floor area of
approximately 1,200 square metres (“sg.m.”) which is
located in Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province. Our
customers in this business segment include light and
ultra-light aircraft manufacturers, flight schools, flying
entertainment clubs, light aircraft research institutions
and private flight owners.

In accordance with “Fourteenth Five-Year Plan Special
Plan for General Aviation Development” (Minhangfa
[2022] No. 8) issued by Civil Aviation Administration of
China, the total general aviation flight time (included
drone) in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
would reach 3.5 million in 2022 and further grow to 4.5
million by 2025. The Group sees great potential for this
business segment, which could provide boost for the
long term growth of business for the Group. The Group
will continue to focus on the development of the
general aviation value chain in the PRC.

PEIPORTHOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN W& (F)

PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
(Continued)

(3) Sale of general aviation products and provision
of services (Continued)

Revenue from this business segment during the year
ended 31 December 2022 raised 1.7% on a year-to-
year basis. Revenue from this business segment was
approximately HK$117.5 million (2021: HK$115.5
million). It accounted for approximately 47.8% (2021:
41.3%) of the Group’s revenue during the year.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the economies of Mainland China and
Hong Kong are expected to regain momentum and recover
from the relaxation of COVID-19 controls and social
distancing measures.

By the reallocation of unutilised net proceed from the
Listing, the Group gains the flexibility to use the resources in
promoting our brands and capture the new sales
opportunities. The Group stands ready for the normalisation,
while the Group remain alert to adapt to the changing
dynamics in the market trend and development.

The Group will continue to invest in the research and
development in order to maintain its competitive edges and
will continue to explore other suitable business opportunities
to pursue long-term business growth.

We would continue focusing on our core value and strive to
create better value for our shareholders.

BRI KRR (F])

(3) HEBRAMZERRREHRE (&)

HE_T-_—_F#+-_A=+—HLHF
[E - REZESRSEA U IZF LN
17% ° REZEBIREA W B L
M75EEBT(ZE-—F 115585
BIL) MAEERAFENREL
47.8% (ZFE=—4F : 41.3%) o

Al

RERK - hEAM L FENEERIHER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRRE D (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group was derived from business
consisting of: (i) thermal imaging products and services; (ii)
self-stabilised imaging products and services; and (iii) general
aviation products and services. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the total revenue of the Group decreased
by approximately HK$33.8 million, or 12.1% from
approximately HK$279.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately HK$245.6 million. The
decrease was primarily attributable to the following reasons:

(i)

(ii)

Thermal imaging products and services

Revenue derived from thermal imaging products and
services decreased by approximately HK$38.1 million,
or 33.2%, from approximately HK$114.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
HK$76.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The decrease was primarily attributable to a decrease
in sales of ultraviolet cameras, SF6 gas imaging
cameras and ultrasonic products from our existing
customers due to decrease in demand of the relevant
products.

Self-stabilised imaging products and services

Revenue derived from self-stabilised imaging products
and services remained relatively stable at approximately
HK$49.0 million and HK$50.9 million for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, respectively.

(iii) General aviation products and services

Revenue derived from general aviation products and
services remained relatively stable at approximately
HK$115.5 million and HK$117.5 million for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRRE D (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit for the Group decreased from approximately
HK$82.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$72.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, and the gross profit margin remained
relatively stable at approximately 29.5% and 29.6% for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, respectively.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Gross profit margin of thermal imaging products
and services

The gross profit margin of thermal imaging products
and services decreased by approximately 2.7% from
approximately 21.3% for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately 18.6% for the year ended 31
December 2022. The decrease in our gross profit
margin was primarily attributable to the decrease in
sales of ultraviolet cameras and SF6 gas imaging
cameras which had a relatively higher gross profit
margin.

Gross profit margin of self-stabilised imaging
products and services

The gross profit margin of self-stabilised imaging
products and services remained relatively stable at
approximately 46.9% and 46.4% for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2022, respectively.

Gross profit margin of general aviation products
and services

The gross profit margin of general aviation products
and services remained relatively stable at approximately
30.2% and 29.5% for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2022, respectively.

Other Income and Gains, Net

The Group's other income and gains remained relatively
stable at approximately HK$3.1 million and HK$2.3 million
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022,
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& (F)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses remained
relatively stable at approximately HK$30.7 million and
HK$30.5 million for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022, respectively.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by
approximately HK$4.8 million, or 15.9%, from approximately
HK$30.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$34.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. The increase was mainly attributable to an
increase in research and development expenses of
approximately HK$2.5 million as a result of more research
and development projects undertaken during the year ended
31 December 2022, increase in depreciation of right-of-use
assets of approximately HK$1.2 million and increase in staff
welfare of approximately HK$0.6 million.

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses increased by approximately
HK$10.2 million, or 242.9%, from approximately
HK$4.2million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$14.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. The increase in other expenses was
primarily attributable to the recognition of foreign exchange
loss of approximately HK$10.5 million in 2022.

Finance Costs

According to the adoption of the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") 16 Leases issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") effective as of 1 January 2019, at the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee is required to
recognise a liability of lease payment (i.e. the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e. the right-of-use asset). As a
result, finance costs of approximately HK$0.5 million and
HK$0.5 million for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022 were recognised, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN W& (F)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Income Tax Credit/(Expense)

Our income tax credit/(expense) represented our total
current income tax and deferred tax credit/(expense) under
the relevant PRC and Hong Kong income tax laws and
regulations. The Group recorded an income tax credit of
approximately HK$1.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 as compared to an income tax expense of
approximately HK$3.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

(Loss)/Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of
the Parent

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, the
Group recorded the loss attributable to the owners of the
parent of approximately HK$3.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 as compared to the profit for the year
attributable to the owners of the parent of approximately
HK$17.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital financed mainly by internal
resources. As at 31 December 2022, the Group reported net
current assets of approximately HK$331.7 million, as
compared with approximately HK$349.0 million as at 31
December 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents was approximately HK$244.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$20.6 million
as compared to approximately HK$224.0 million as at 31
December 2021. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
net cash generated from operating activities was
approximately HK$40.8 million (2021: HK$26.2 million). The
cash generated from operating activities was mainly from
the decrease in inventories and trade and bills receivables
balances during the year ended 31 December 2022. The net
cash used in investing activities was approximately HK$41.7
million (2021: HK$2.6 million). The net cash used in financing
activities was approximately HK$12.6 million (2021: HK$11.5
million). The net cash used in investing activities was mainly
attributable to the investment of time deposits and
acquisition of property, plant and equipment during the year.
The net cash used in financing activities was mainly arising
from the payment of lease liabilities and the payment of final
dividend.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& (F)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant
capital commitments (31 December 2021: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Functional currency of the Group’s operating subsidiaries is
either Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi, while some of the
Group’s business transactions and cost of sales are
denominated in United States dollar and Euro.

The Group has transactional currency exposures and such
exposures arise from sales or purchases made by
subsidiaries in currencies other than the subsidiaries’
functional currencies. The Group's foreign currency exposure
also comprises assets and liabilities denominated in United
States dollar. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not pledge any
assets (31 December 2021: Nil).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, since we did not have any bank
borrowings, gearing ratio was not applicable to our Group.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The final offer price for the Listing was HK$1.25 per share,
and the actual net proceeds from the Listing were
approximately HK$81.2 million (after deduction of the listing
expenses).

The net proceeds had been intended to be used in
accordance with the purposes as set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the
prospectus of the Company issued on 31 December 2018
(the "Prospectus”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEN W& (F)

USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18
October 2022 (the “Announcement”), the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic, which had led to travel restrictions
and/or quarantine requirements, has made it more difficult
for the Company’s management to locate suitable premise
and develop the research and development centre in the
PRC in 2022. The Board considers it is appropriate to
reallocate the unutilised net proceeds initially intended for
the establishment of research and development centre in
the PRC to other imminent needs of the Group. For further
details, please refer to the Announcement.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the net proceeds from
the Listing were utilised as follows:

FRERERZE ()

BWAARBHA—ZT-_—F+A+N\BZA
E(ZAE])FHE - R COVID-19R B #
B BRHTREIRHRREKR - ARE
ERER T _SFEHRATESHAENS
PR B RAEHL - EFERA - BRERE
PEIRM A E P LR ARB RS TR FEEN
PEEAKEHEMENFTEBSEMNE - ES
HEFELSHRAE -

WARFERE RS SRR E
ERAT :

Original Expected
allocation of Amount Amount  timeline for
net proceeds Revised utilised as at unutilised as at utilisation of
accordingto allocation of the date of this the date of this  the remaining

the Prospectus  the proceeds  Annual Report ~ Annual Report  proceeds
RERRER
FERERR FERE RAFERE RAFERE BARTHE
ResBE SBIIEE BHCHREE DOAFREE FENEEREXR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T i ThL TAL
Establish new research and EREREARL 39,600 19,600 (13,972) 5,628 By the end of
development centres in the RS 2024
PRC and Hong Kong ZECRERR
Enhance the recognition and RRAMERNRNE 17,300 27,300 (20,635) 6,665 By the end of
qualification of our products RER 2024
“Z_MERA
Strengthen our sales capacityand ~ EEHEE HLILE 21,100 31,100 (24,409) 6,691 By the end of
capture new sales opportunities HMHERE 2024
“ECMEER
Purchase new information technology & B#f A M@ 2,500 2,500 (2,500) - NA
hardware and software R#H NER
Working capital EEAS 700 700 (700) - NA
NER
81,200 81,200 (62,216) 18,984
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWE D (E)

USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

All the unutilised balances have been placed in a licensed
bank in Hong Kong.

RESTRUCTURING AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, the
Group did not have any restructuring and significant
investments.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had a total of 149 (31 December 2021: 147)
employees as at 31 December 2022. Total staff costs of the
Group (excluding the Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$47.3 million (2021: HK$43.9 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies were in line with relevant
legislation, market conditions and the performance of our
employees.

DIVIDENDS

Having considered the financial and cash flow position of the
Company, as well as to reward the shareholders of the
Company for their continued support during the challenging
economic environment brought about by the COVID-19
pandemic and enhance investors’ confidence in the
Company, the Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.35 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Proposed Final Dividend”) to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 21 June 2023,
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the "AGM") to be held on Friday, 9
June 2023. It is expected that the Proposed Final Dividend
will be paid on or before Friday, 7 July 2023. The Proposed
Final Dividend shall be declared and distributed in Hong
Kong dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRRE D (&)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) for determining the entitlement to attend and

(B)

vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 2 June 2023 to Friday, 9 June 2023, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfers of
shares shall be effected. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the AGM to be held on Friday, 9
June 2023, all transfers of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms, must be
lodged for registration with the Hong Kong share
registrar of the Company, Union Registrars Limited at
Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong no
later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 1 June 2023.

for determining the entitlement to the
Proposed Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 19 June 2023 to Wednesday, 21 June
2023, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to be eligible to receive the Proposed Final
Dividend, all transfers of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms, must be
lodged for registration with the Hong Kong share
registrar of the Company, Union Registrars Limited at
Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong no
later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 16 June 2023.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (# &%), aged 74, is the founder of
our Group. Mr. Yeung is the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Mr. Yeung was appointed as a Director
on 19 December 2017. He is in charge of the strategic
direction and development strategy of our Group. Mr. Yeung
is also a director of a number of our subsidiaries and the
member of the Company’s remuneration committee.

Mr. Yeung has over 20 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. He obtained
his bachelor's degree in aeronautical engineering from
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (F 5
ZEHMAKE) (formerly known as Nanjing College of
Aeronautics (F R ZEEFR)) in June 1982. Mr. Yeung started
his career in the industry working as a designer of aircraft
machinery at the Aviation Department Aircraft Design
Institute* (P BIATZE T B A R)FHE/~— LA, also known
as P9JIIAX#&F611F7) from February 1982 to May 1985 where
he was mainly responsible for design of aircraft machinery.
He joined Schmidt & Co., (Hong Kong) Ltd., a company
focusing on system integration, in May 1986 and was
promoted to the role of product manager in January 1993
responsible for business development. He then founded our
Group in April 1998 and has served as managing director of
our Group since then.

Mr. Yeung served as the general manager (B2 %) of
Infrared Analysis Society of China* (BN HTEE) in
1989. In 2004, he was appointed as the Economic
Development Consultant of Meijiang District, Meizhou* (&
N TR&ET S EEEER) by the Meizhou Meijian
Committee Meizhou Meijiang People’'s Government* (f1 4t
TR IRZE el MNmEIEREARKMA). He was
awarded the title of the 20th Anniversary of Meijiang District
Outstanding Contributor* (/T [RZE205BF = ERE) by
the Meizhou Meijian Committee Meizhou Meijiang People’s
Government* (R HEEMNHHHTIEZE B SHMNTIELIEARK
f¥) in 2008. Besides, Mr. Yeung was appointed as the
Honorary Vice-chairman of Fifth Executive Committee of
Guangzhou Land, Marine and Aero Modelling Association*
(BMNmEEERIESHHEFAERESERZEREF) in
2011.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

ESERGHREEE (E)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yeung has obtained various qualifications, including (i)
the Service and Maintenance Course for Ultralight Aircraft
Engines ROTAX 582-618-912 Diploma from ROTAX in
March 1993; (ii) the Thermovision 500 Operator Training
Course awarded by Agema Infrared Systems in October
1997; (iii) The American Society for Nondestructive Testing
Level Il Certificate Program in October 1999; and (iv) the
Thermal Imaging Fundamentals Certificate awarded by FLIR
Infrared Training Centre in June 2007. Mr. Yeung further
completed the Advanced CEO Program* ({®#42%(CEO)&
HAHMEL) at Tsinghua University in May 2010.

Mr. Yeung is the spouse of Ms. WONG Kwan Lik and the
father of Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai.

Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (E£#f 1), aged 66, is the chief executive
officer and an executive Director. Ms. Wong was appointed
as a Director on 19 December 2017. She joined our Group in
April 1998 and has since then taken an active part in the
sales and operation of our Group. Ms. Wong is also a
director of a number of our subsidiaries and the member of
the Company's nomination committee.

Ms. Wong has over 20 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. From February
1982 to May 1986, Ms. Wong worked on aviation machinery
research at the Aviation Department Aircraft Design
Institute* (R EIfiTZE T 4B A A%/~ ——H5LFT, also known
as PUJIIAX#EBG11F7). Ms. Wong has been serving as the sales
manager of Peiport Scientific Limited (“Peiport Scientific”)
and Peiport Scientific Aero Limited (“Peiport Aero”) from
April 1998 to June 2018 and from July 2018 to March 2019,
respectively. Since 1 April 2019, she has been promoted to
the managing director of Peiport Aero and is responsible for
planning and coordination of sales and operations of our
Group.

Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor’'s degree in aeronautical
engineering from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics (R RATZEMAARE) (formerly known as Nanjing
College of Aeronautics (FRMZEZk)) in June 1982.

Ms. Wong is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching and the
mother of Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai.

E= (&)
BITES(H)

BEEENGBZEER  BREONR—NANL=F
= A ROTAX 78 1% 8 88 B FR A% 25 Eh i AR 155 [
% & % 2ROTAX 582-618-912 X /& : (i)
— N+~ 5% Agema Infrared Systems 78
B AR R HL00E E 5 iE P &R R Gi)R
—NNNF+ A TREBERE R e =
RBERE  RIVRZZEZLFXAEFLR
£ 5N 48 15 3l R O (FLIR Infrared Training
Centre) B AKX G EMEEZ - N _ZT—TF
AR BREBRBERBETHNEELH
(CEQ) = AR WHE T -

BRERBIBMNXEIZEBEBREREZR
e

EHNLL 6658 RITHREERNRIITES -
FXRIR Tt F+_A+NBEZERE
B BFR—ANANFOANAKREER - BitTE
BBEAREEHHEREE - TR TFREM
ZHRNBAREEFEENAARRIZREESR
SHKE -

FRTAAEERBAMETEEBB204F
Ko M—WN_F_AE—NN\SRFRA
TLLtRFABMZE TERRREN——HEM
(7R A A& 611 BT) fe Sfn = a7t T
Ee RM—AANEMNAE -ZT—NFEXAER
—E-NEFE+tAE-T-NE=A FTatH
RIEARERHEBR AR ([FERHE]) R F
BnARAR ([HFERM D MIEELE - 5=
T—NFNA—BR  BEBHABEEEMD
EFRLE  AEREIRBANERNHEER
EE o

FEAER AN ZFRNAETERMEMAK
B(REEAMEER) ARME=TRELE
fi o

Izt RGRELSENEBRGRELENT
e

HEERERAT /2022 F3k

23



24

Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERGAREEE (F)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai (##&2%), aged 35, is an executive
Director. Mr. Yeung was appointed as a Director on 22
August 2018. Mr. Yeung joined our Group in February 2016
and has since then taken part in the management of
operation and supplier relationship of our Group.

Mr. Yeung has over 6 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. From April
2013 till February 2014, Mr. Yeung worked as an associate
in the ICT hardware department under the Bell Professional
Management Program of Bell Canada, and was responsible
for building and maintaining the office’'s computers and
facilities. He was promoted to the position of technical
analyst in October 2013 and was responsible for managing
the daily work of the ICT hardware department. From
August 2014 to March 2015, Mr. Yeung joined Bell Business
Market of Bell Canada and worked as a technical analyst,
responsible for building, testing and deploying Cisco
telephone scripts for customers. Mr. Yeung has been
working as the marketing manager of Peiport Scientific and
Peiport Aero from February 2016 to June 2018 and from
July 2018 to March 2019, respectively. Since 1 April 2019,
he has been promoted to the business development director
of Peiport Aero and is mainly responsible for managing the
daily operations of our Group.

Mr. Yeung obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
McMaster University in Canada in June 2010, majoring in
computer engineering. He further obtained a master’s
degree in engineering from McMaster University in June
2013, majoring in electrical and computer engineering.

Mr. Yeung is the son of Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching and Ms.
WONG Kwan Lik.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

ESERGHREEE (E)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie (4$E5%), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 December 2018.
He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board. Mr. Niu is also the chairman of the
Company’s nomination committee and the member of the
audit committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Niu has worked with various financial institutions and
has extensive experience in equity capital markets. He
served as a director of Vision Finance Asset Management
Limited from February 2008 to January 2015. He has been
the director of Vision Finance International Company Limited
since September 2007 to present, and has also been the
responsible officer of the company to carry on type 1
(dealing in securities) and type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) regulated activities since November 2007.
Furthermore, he has been the responsible officer for type 4
(advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities of Vision Finance Asset Management
Limited since December 2008 and July 2010, respectively.

He has served as an independent non-executive director of
Nanjing Sample Technology Company Ltd. (stock code:
1708) since 27 May 2019.

Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen (5 #3K), aged 47, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 December
2018. She is responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to our Board. Ms. Yeung is also the
chairwoman of the Company’s audit committee and the
member of the nomination committee.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERGAREEE (F)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Yeung has over 20 years of experience in finance and
accounting. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Yeung worked in
various companies being responsible in the finance and
accounting aspects, among which she served as (i) a staff
accountant in the audit department of Ernst & Young in
Hong Kong from September 1997 to March 1999; (ii) an
accounting officer of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd
from September 1999 to 2002; (iii) an accountant of Bruker
Optics Inc. from January 2006 to February 2007; (iv) the
accounting manager and financial controller of PCC Asia LCC
since April 2007 to June 2019 and from July 2019 to March
2020, respectively; and (v) the wealth management manager
of AIA Company Limited since September 2020.

Ms. Yeung was awarded the Bachelor of Arts (Hons) Degree
in Accountancy by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
1997. Ms. Yeung was admitted in January 2007 as a
member of the HKICPA. She is currently a Certified Public
Accountant registered with the HKICPA. She has been a
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since May 2006.

Mr. HOU Min ({#&), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 December 2018.
He responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board. Mr. Hou is also the chairman of the
company’s remuneration committee and the member of the
audit committee.

Mr. Hou has over 20 years of experience in the aviation
industry. From 1980 to 1994, Mr. Hou served in the PRC
military. Mr. Hou served as an officer at the Anti-Smuggling
Bureau of the Beijing Customs Office between September
1994 and March 2002. From 2002 to 2004, Mr. Hou was
employed by Sino Television Co. Ltd (18 &R GR A7) as
a pilot for aerial photography. From May 2012 to December
2013, Mr. Hou worked at Anhui Dinghong General Aviation
Company Limited* (ZRTBZRBAMZEERAF]) (previously
known as the Anhui Dinghong General Aviation Company
Limited* (ZBUR Z=BAMERRAF]), with his last position
being the general manager respon3|ble for daily operations.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

ESERGHREEE (E)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

From February 2015 to August 2017, Mr. Hou was the
general manager of Hunan Sunward General Aviation
Company Limited* (# LA ZE N :BM AR A F)) responsible
for the daily operations of the company. From December
2017 to the present, Mr. Hou has been the legal
representative and general manager of Guizhou Huang Ping
Qie Lan General Aviation Company Limited* (&M =¥ &
BAMZEAR AR responsible for the overall operation and
management.

Mr. Hou completed the fighter pilot diploma at the PRC
People's Liberation Army Air Force Fourth Aviation School*
(FERARBMEZEENOMZEELR) in December 1982. He
further obtained a bachelor’s degree in military science from
the Army Staff College* (FEEZ2REE) in the PRC in July
1994,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. SZE So Fan (£ #tl), aged 53, is the deputy chief
executive officer of our Group. Ms. Sze joined our Group in
May 1999 and is responsible for overall administration and
human resources management of our Group.

Ms. Sze has over 20 years of experience in the marketing
field. Between March 1998 to April 1999, Ms. Sze worked
as a marketing executive in TFH Technology Co., Ltd., a
company which engages in the trading of engineering
equipment and she was mainly responsible for assisting the
sales and marketing manager for formulation and
implementation of sales and marketing strategy.

Ms. Sze graduated from Minzu University of China (A5 K&
) in June 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in physics.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENEREEE (E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. KWAN Leung Yu (B8=F), aged 46, is the technology
director of our Group and is responsible for the overall
technical products and supplier relationship management of
our Group. Mr. Kwan has over 20 years of experience in the
engineering field. Mr. Kwan joined our Group in September
1999 as a sales engineer and was promoted to assistant
general manager in April 2004 where he was mainly
responsible for design, tailoring and preparation of technical
proposals of thermal imaging products and services and self-
stabilised imaging related products and services for our
customers. Mr. Kwan obtained his bachelor’s degree in
engineering from The University of Hong Kong in December
1998.

Mr. XIA Xiaoming (E#8H), aged 63, is the chief engineer
of our Group. Mr. Xia joined our Group in 2002 and is
responsible for research and development of the products of
our Group. Mr. Xia has over 20 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. From January
1989 to March 1993, Mr. Xia worked as a teacher in Nanjing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (F R M ZE A A
E) (formerly known as Nanjing University of Aeronautics (F8
FMZE KE)). From 1993 to 1995, Mr. Xia worked as
technical manager in Shenzhen Transportation Machinery
and Electronics Company* (RYI|Z2 B} E T2 7)) and was
responsible for research and development of mechanical
products.

Mr. Xia obtained a master’'s degree in engineering, and
doctor's degree in engineering, from Nanjing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics (Fd R=AZEMAARE) (formerly
known as Nanjing University of Aeronautics (B RfinZe AE)
in December 1984 and May 1989, respectively. He further
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Duquesne University in the United States in December
1997.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENREREEE (E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. LEUNG Chin Ching (&#2), aged 36, is the company
secretary and financial controller of our Group. Ms. Leung
joined our Group in December 2017 and is primarily
responsible for the secretarial, compliance work and overall
financial and accounting operations of our Group.

Ms. Leung has over 13 years of experience in finance and
accounting. She obtained the bachelor degree of business
administration in accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong in July 2009. She is admitted as a certified public
accountant of the HKICPA in July 20183.

Note: If there is any inconsistency between the official Chinese name of the PRC
laws or regulations or the PRC Government authorities or the PRC entities and
their English translation, the Chinese version shall prevail. English translations
of official Chinese names are for identification purposes only and are marked
with “*".
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERBE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company (the “Corporate Governance Report”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that high
corporate governance standards are essential in providing a
framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

Since 11 January 2019, the listing date (the “Listing Date"),
the Company has adopted the principles and the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) during the year on
the Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
all the applicable code provisions and, where appropriate,
adopted the recommended best practices set out in the CG
Code throughout year ended 31 December 2022.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model
Code"”) as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own securities dealing code to regulate all dealings by
Directors in the securities of the Company and other matters
covered by the Model Code.

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and they

have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year under review.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Senior
Management

The Board is the primary decision-making body of the
Company and is responsible for overseeing the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
makes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The day-to-day operations and management are delegated
by the Board to the senior management of the Group, who
is responsible for overseeing the general operation, business
development, finance and marketing.

The Company has arranged insurance coverage in respect of
directors’ liability for all Directors.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of
three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this Corporate Governance Report, the composition
of the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (Chairman)

Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. NIU Zhongjie

Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen
Mr. HOU Min
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD COMPOSITION (Continued)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 22 to 29 of this Annual Report. The relationships
between the members of the Board are also disclosed under
the same section.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (“Mr. YEUNG"), being the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”), provides leadership and is
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of
the Board. Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (“Ms. WONG"), being the
chief executive officer, focuses on the Company'’s business
development and the daily management and operations. The
segregation of roles of the Chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company aligns with the requirement pursuant
to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the CG Code, it stipulates that non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election and all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. The Company has
complied with the requirements of the CG Code that all
Directors are appointed for a term of three years. Such
appointment may be terminated earlier by either party giving
to the other not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”), at each AGM one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least one every three years. Accordingly,
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai and Mr. HOU Min will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being eligible,
offers themselves for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation in
respect of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by each independent non-
executive Director concerned or our Company expiring at
the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code,the Board
established mechanism to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board, including encouraging active
participation of the independent non-executive Directors,
complying with the Listing Rules requirement on the number
of independent non-executive Directors appointed and
ensuring the independent non-executive Directors to devote
sufficient time to discharge their duties as a Director. The
Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of
the mechanism on an annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), to oversee particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All Board committees are provided
sufficient resources to perform its duties and, if necessary,
to seek independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company to fulfill their responsibilities. They are also
required to report to the Board after each meeting on their
decisions or recommendations.
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TEERHRE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since 18
December 2018 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules.
Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. NIU
Zhongjie, Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen and Mr. HOU Min. Ms.
YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen is the chairwoman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditors; (ii) review
the financial statements; (iii) provide material advice in
respect of our financial reporting process; (iv) oversee our
internal control and risk management systems and audit
process; and (v) provide advice and comment to our Board
on matters related to corporate governance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held
four meetings and has performed the following works:

— recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor and the remuneration;

— considered and reviewed the scope of audit work and
monitored its independence;

— reviewed the unaudited accounts, interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2022 and annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2021;

— reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the
Group; and

— reviewed the effectiveness of the financial reporting
system, internal control and risk management systems
and internal audit function of the Group.

In addition, according to our terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Audit Committee also held a meeting with
our external auditor in the absence of the management to
discuss matters relating to the auditor’'s remuneration and
scope of audit works during the year under review.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since
18 December 2018 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. Pursuant
to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were
adopted, amended and approved by the Board on 15
December 2022. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. HOU Min and Mr. NIU Zhongjie and one executive
Director, namely Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching. Mr. HOU Min is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to (i)
review and make recommendations to our Board on the
terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management
of the Company; (i) assessing performance of Directors; and
(ili) approve the terms of the Directors’ service contracts.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
recommendation model described in E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting and has performed the following works:

— reviewed the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company and
made recommendations to the Board on their specific
packages; and

— reviewed the fees of the independent non-executive
Directors and made recommendations to the Board.

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was set out below:
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TEERHRE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since 18
December 2018 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Currently, the Nomination Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. NIU Zhongjie and Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen and one
executive Director, namely Ms. WONG Kwan Lik. Mr. NIU
Zhongjie is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the structure, size and composition of our Board; (ii)
identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors ; and (iv) review and make
recommendations to the Board on appointment or
reappointment of directors and the management of the
Board succession.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting and has performed the following works:

— reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board
and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

— set up the nomination policy of the Company (the
“Nomination Policy”) and reviewed its implementation;

— identified individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

— assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and

— reviewed the Board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and its implementation.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set out
in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, technical and professional skills and/or
qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a director.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates to serve as a
director of the Company, the Nomination Committee would
consider the above criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

As set out in the Board Diversity Policy, the Company
targets to appoint a minimum of one Director of a different
gender. Throughout 2022 and up to the date of this Annual
Report, the Board had two female Directors and 50% of the
senior management were female. The Board targets to
maintain the current level of female representation, with the
minimum of one female member. As of 31 December 2022,
73.8% and 26.2% of the Group’s employees were male and
female, respectively. The Group recognises the value of
gender diversity to promote a diverse and inclusive working
environment.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to
implement board diversity and review such objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The
Nomination Committee shall review and monitor the
effectiveness of the board diversity of the Board.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board's
composition under diversified perspectives was summarised
as follows:
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TEERHRE (F)

NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted the Nomination Policy on 22 February
2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

Objectives

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. This policy
provides the key selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making any such
recommendations.

Selection Criteria

When making recommendations regarding the appointment
of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall consider a variety of factors including
without limitation the following in assessing the suitability of
the proposed candidate:

(1) Reputation for integrity;

(2)  Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the
business and other relevant sectors relate to the
Company and/or its subsidiaries;

(8)  Commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention
to the Company's business;

(4) Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural/educational and professional
background, skills, knowledge and experience;

(5)  The ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company’s
success;

(6) Compliance with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the
appointment of an independent non-executive Director,
and
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)
Selection Criteria (Continued)

(7)  Any other relevant factors as may be determined by
the Nomination Committee or the Board from time to
time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall
be made in accordance with the Articles of Association and
other applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

In general, the Board shall have the ultimate responsibility
for all matters relating to the selection, appointment and re-
appointment of Directors.

(1) The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
convene a meeting and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates
for its consideration.

(2) In the context of appointment of any proposed
candidate to the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such individual and make recommendations for the
Board's consideration and approval.

(8) In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the proposed
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

Review and monitoring of the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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TEERHRE (F)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
on 22 February 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed
as below.

The Group is committed to maintaining sufficient resources
and flexibility to meet the Group’s financial and operational
requirements. At the same time, the Company continually
seeks ways to enhance shareholders’ value to ensure
sustainable long-term yields for shareholders.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company gives priority to
distributing dividend in cash and shares its profits with its
shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be determined
or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the Group's
financial results, future prospects and other factors, and
subject to:

(1) the Articles of Association;

(2) the applicable restrictions and requirements under the
laws of the Cayman Islands;

(3) any banking or other funding covenants by which the
Company is bound from time to time;

(4) the investment and operating requirements of the
Group; and

(5) any other factors that have material impact on the
Company.

The Board may consider distributing special dividend to all
shareholders, and the amount of which shall be determined
and approved by the Board at its absolute discretion.

Under the Cayman Islands Companies Act and the Articles
of Association of the Company, all of our shareholders have
equal entitlement to dividends and distributions. The Board
shall have the right to review the Dividend Policy from time
to time as it deems fit according to the financial and
business development requirements of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in code provision A.2 of the CG Code.

The Board would review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management, the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the code
of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”) applicable to employees
and Directors, and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

In accordance with the code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code,
the Board should establish the Company’s purpose, values
and strategy, and satisfy itself that these and the issuer’s
culture are aligned. Aligning with our motto of “Continuous
striving; Cultivating self, Harmonious Peiport family; Caring
for our staff; Contributing to the society; Creating return for
our shareholders”, all Directors must act with integrity, lead
by example, and promote the desired culture. Such culture
should instil and continually reinforce across the organisation
values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of
the majority of the Directors, either in person or through
electronic means of communications.
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TEERHRE (F)

BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

Notice of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days in advance while reasonable notice is given
for other Board meetings. Agenda and accompanying board
papers are sent, in full, to all Directors at least 3 days before
the intended date of the regular Board meetings and Board
committees meetings to enable all Directors to make
informed decisions. Minutes of regular Board meetings and
Board committees meetings are drafted by the company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”) in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions
reached. Draft and final versions of minutes of the meetings
are sent to all Board members and Board committee
members for their comment and records, within a
reasonable time after the meetings. Full minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and the Board Committees, and the
AGM during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTeENY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Name of Directors EEnS Board Committee  Committee  Committee AGM

EEX® ERZEE FMZEE REZEE RRBEEAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching Bt 4/4 - 1" - Il
Ms. WONG Kwan Lik TENLT 4/4 - - 11 Il
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai iR 44 _ _ N "
Independent Non-Executive BV ##HTEE

Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie GhEEEE 4/4 4/4 n N N
Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen BEETt 4/4 4/4 - 1/1 1/1
Mr. HOU Min FRLE 4/4 4/4 1 - il

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the chairman has
also met once with all independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors, to discuss various
matters in respect of corporate governance of the Company.

In addition, according to the terms of reference of Audit
Committee, the members of the Audit Committee have met
with the auditors in the absence of the management to
discuss matters relating to the audit fees and scope of audit
works during the year under review.
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TEERHRE (F)

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of the responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’'s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors, namely
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching, Ms. WONG Kwan Lik, Mr. YEUNG
Chun Tai, Mr. NIU Zhongjie, Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen and
Mr. HOU Min have confirmed that they had complied with
code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and details are set out
below:
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Types of Trainings

Directors = (See Remarks)
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Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching Bimtafk e A B

Ms. WONG Kwan Lik FENZ L A B

Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai BIRF LA A B

Independent Non-Executive BYFBITESE

Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie GEEEE A B

Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen e A B

Mr. HOU Min BIRSE A B

Remarks: 734

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEHE R SeENh S wimiE

B: reading journals, updates, articles and/or materials, etc. B: THEST - EH - XERSAMEE
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2022, the Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, the accounts is prepared on a going concern
basis and they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is included in the
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 72 to 79 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY AND
REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
appointed Ernst & Young as the external auditor. Details of
the fees paid or payable in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided by Ernst & Young for the year ended 31
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December 2022 are set out in the table below: FERERANERNTE
Fee paid/
Services Rendered 2R MRS payable
gt/
EAEAR
HK$'000
FET
Audit services: FErthRT
— Annual audit and related services — FEEIBBRE 1,280
Non-audit services: FEEETARTS -
— Agreed-upon procedures with respect to — BT HRENHBTERER
interim report and other professional K EH A B Z R
services 280
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has undertaken the overall responsibility for
overseeing the Group's risk management and internal
control systems on an on-going basis and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually in order to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Group.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives and
ensuring that the Group has established and maintained
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee to review
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group. Based on its review, the Audit
Committee advises the Board on the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems,
including the identification and monitoring of the risks, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions. The management has also
been delegated to design, implement and maintain the
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

Risk management is curial to promote good corporate
governance. Our risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk control and review. The
management is entrusted with duties to identify, evaluate,
respond, monitor and communicate risks to the head of the
respective business units or department to enforce the
remediation. Risks are assessed by our management and
reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board based on (i)
the probability that the risk will occur; and (i) the severity of
the impact on the Group. According to the likelihood of
occurrence and the impact of the risk, our Group implement
the risk management strategies by avoiding the risk, sharing
or transferring the risk, mitigating the risk, and accepting the
risk.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

To further strengthen the risk management and internal
control of the Group, the Company appointed external
advisers to undertake the internal audit function and perform
an annual review of the internal control systems of the
Group. The external advisers evaluate the Group's risk
management and internal control systems by reviewing the
material controls, including financial, operation and
compliance. The rotation basis would be applied to
operations with similar risk associated so as to enhance the
efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit function.
Review results and the recommendations in the form of
written report are submitted to the Audit Committee for
discussion and review. Follow up actions will be taken up by
the management of the Group to ensure all significant
control activities are properly in place within the Group and
findings previously identified have been properly resolved.

The Company has conducted annual review on the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Groups risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2022 and the management has confirmed that
there is no significant deficiency and weakness on the
internal control system has been identified by the external
advisers. During the year under review, both the Board and
the Audit Committee satisfied and confirmed that the
Group's risk management and internal control systems were
effective and adequate.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling
the dissemination of inside information, the Group has
adopted a policy on the disclosure of inside information (the
“Inside Information Policy”) in order to comply with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing
Rules. According to the Inside information Policy, the
Company has taken appropriate measures to identify inside
information and preserve its confidentiality until proper
dissemination via the electronic publication system operated
by the Stock Exchange. Senior management of the Group
must take all reasonable measures to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent the leakage of inside information
of the Company from time to time. They must also promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside
information to the attention of the Board accordingly for
taking the appropriate action promptly.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

INSIDE INFORMATION (Continued)
Whistleblowing and Anti-Corruption

The Board has adopted the whistle-blowing policy to report
on grievances, misconducts or violations. Formal reporting
channel is established to protect the identification of whistle-
blower. If there is any suspected misconduct or malpractice
within the Group, we encourage our employees, customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders to come forward and voice
those concerns.

In addition, to prevent bribery and corruption within our
Group, we have formulated the Code of Conduct in order to
set out the basic standard of conduct of all Directors and
staff, and the Company’s policy on acceptance of advantage
and handling of conflict of interest when dealing with the
Company's business.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. LEUNG Chin Ching, who is
also the financial controller of the Group, is a full-time
employee of the Company. She reports to the Board through
the Chairman and/or the chief executive officer on
governance matters. Also, all Directors should have access
to her advice and services to ensure that board procedures,
and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed.
Her biography is set out on page 29 of this Annual Report in
the section of “Directors and Senior Management”.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. LEUNG Chin
Ching has confirmed that she has complied with all the
qualifications and training requirements as required under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

REHE (&)
BHERRES

EZSCRMBRBE - UREHF - TE%H
BERTR - BB EXBHMERE - URE
BRAFND - AEERNHNEERAIRNTE
RERTR RARBEL P  HEBK
His Mz ERAE RS M AR ERE

BESN - B IR BRI R B R RAAIEHI
EITRER URSE2BEFERETHEATT
RFEE - URARRERERHREX NS R
BRI M a5 B RAT R ©

NCIEE

NRAMERREX T T RASENMBEER
ARBNERES - wEBERERHITHRE
RNEFeEREEELREHE AN MAE
ER RSB RN E R IR - ARERE
SeRFMAEERER  RARRIIGES
BT HEFHNAFEREL 298 [EER
BREERE] 8-

REBEE_Z_—_F+-_A=1+—HILFE 3
REZTHER  HOETEMREI2GT
HIPTA B8 MIFFIRE

BERERERAT /2022 F

47



48

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings (the
“EGM”) by the Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, the
Board may whenever it thinks fit call EGM. EGM shall also
be convened on the requisition of any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company at Suite 602, 6/F., Chinachem
Leighton Plaza, No. 29 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any
specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put forward enquiries to the
Board at general meeting or send written enquiries to the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary at the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suite
602, 6/F., Chinachem Leighton Plaza, No. 29 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy on 18 December 2018. Such policy is
monitored and reviewed by the Board on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company considers that
effective communication with shareholders is essential for
enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group's business performance and strategies. The
Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other
general meetings. At the forthcoming AGM, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) will be available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at “www.peiport.com”. Through its
website, the Company provides shareholders with corporate
information, corporate governance practice, interim and
annual reports, announcements, circulars and etc. The
Company will also update the website information from time
to time to inform the shareholders and investors of the
latest development of the Company.

During the year under review, an annual general meeting of
the Company was held on 10 June 2022 at which all the
Directors attended to communicate with the shareholders of
the Company. All corporate communication and regulatory
announcements were timely published on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board considers
that the shareholders communication policy is effective
during the year ended under review.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no significant change
in the Company's constitution documents. An up to date
version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in the provision of (i)
thermal imaging products and services; (ii) self-stabilised
imaging products and services; and (iii) general aviation
products and services. An analysis of the principal activities
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this Annual Report.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, an indication of likely future developments
in the Group's businesses and other relevant information,
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and the “"Management Discussion and Analysis”
set out on pages 5 to 9 and pages 10 to 21 of this Annual
Report, respectively. Such discussion forms part of this
"Report of the Directors”.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and the key relationships with the Company's
key stakeholders which have a significant impact on the
Group are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and is committed to becoming an
environmentally friendly corporation. Details of our
environmental, social and governance policies and
performance during the year ended 31 December 2022 shall
be disclosed in a standalone "“Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” to published at the same time as the
publication of the Annual Report on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2022
are set out in the financial statements on pages 80 to 82.
The Board are pleased recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.35 cents (2021: HK1.35 cents) per share for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 21 June 2023, subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM to be held
on Friday, 9 June 2023. It is expected that the Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid on or before Friday, 7 July 2023.
The Proposed Final Dividend shall be declared and
distributed in Hong Kong dollars.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out on page 2 of this Annual
Report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
1 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 24
to the financial statements.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture during the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEERE (E)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in “Share Option Scheme” as set out in
this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note
34 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statements of changes in equity. The distributable reserve
of the Company as at 31 December 2022 was
HK$61,371,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, sales to the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 48.0% of the
total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 20.0%.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 70.4% of
the total purchases for the year and purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 47.2%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this Annual Report
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (Chairman)
Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie
Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen
Mr. HOU Min

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee has duly reviewed the independence
of each of these directors. The Company considered that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 29 of
this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for a term of three years and are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms.
The term of the service contracts may be renewed in
accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable rules of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEERE (E)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

Save as discussed above, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not terminable by employing company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and chief
executive and the five highest paid employees of the Group
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements of
this Annual Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty
in their offices. The Company has maintained appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to provide
appropriate coverage for the Directors and other officers of
the Group throughout the year and are currently in force.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Alpha Ltd. (“Peiport
Alpha"), each being the controlling shareholder (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholder(s)"), have entered into a deed of non-
competition dated 18 December 2018 (in favour of the
Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition was set out in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
Prospectus. The Company has received confirmations from
Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Alpha of their
compliance with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition.
Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Alpha declared that
they have fully complied with the Deed of Non-Competition
for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders and confirmed that up to the date of this
Annual Report, all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition have been complied with by Mr. YEUNG, Ms.
WONG and Peiport Alpha.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, our executive
Director, Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai (“Mr. CT YEUNG") held 70%
of the issued share capital of Yoom System Inc. (“Yoom"”)
which is principally engaged in the provision of thermal
imaging and related products and services (“Products”) in
Canada and the United States. Yoom has also entered into
an agreement with Peiport Aero pursuant to which Yoom
will purchase Products from Peiport Aero at cost plus basis
and such purchases shall not exceed 5% of the percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio) of the Company and
HK$3,000,000 per year. During the year ended 31 December
2022, Yoom has not made any purchases from the Group.

In relation to his shareholding interests in Yoom, Mr. CT
YEUNG has provided an undertaking to the Company (the
“CT YEUNG Undertaking”) that Yoom will (i) not operate its
business outside of Canada and the United States; (ii) in the
event that Mr. CT YEUNG receives any business opportunity
that relates to the business carried on by the Group from
time to time and such business is outside Canada and the
United States, Mr. CT YEUNG or Yoom will refer such
business opportunity to the Group; and (iii) in the event the
Group decides to expand its business of sales of Products to
the Canada and the United States, the Company will have
the discretion on (a) Yoom or Mr. CT YEUNG to cease
purchase of any Products from the Group for its sale in
Canada and the United States; and (b) Mr. CT YEUNG wvill
transfer his shareholding in Yoom to the Group.

Based on the CT YEUNG Undertaking, Mr. CT YEUNG has
also provided to the Company a written confirmation on
annual basis in respect of his compliance of the terms of the
CT YEUNG Undertaking. The independent non-executive
Directors of the Company have also reviewed such
confirmation and confirmed that up to the date of this
Annual Report, all the undertakings under the CT YEUNG
Undertaking have been complied by Mr. CT YEUNG.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEERE (E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at the date of this Annual Report, the following Directors
and chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to
have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:

EERTRARRKRSG  HEROR
BREIETFNEERAR

RAFEREREBH - THRARESERITHA
BRARBAHEEAREEE(ERELIEFK
HAE RGBSR XV E#B) 2 B dn ~ MR B E
PHEB IR SEE () RIEFE S MG GROIE
XVEBE 7 M8 D EPAME ANR A R B At 2 4
DIRR (BREEFREREZRAE GO 2%
EREREFIER/EAZERRAR) + K
(i) IRI5 78 7 K B S 16151 35 352 {5 7R FC BRI A% 16k
BIFrte 2 Bt 2 SOXR ¢ (i) RIBF
ETRAMEARNRA LB R sk R ¢

Ordinary Shares of the Company: AT 2 EBRRM :
Number of Approximate

Capacity/ ordinary shares and percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest class of securities shareholding (%)
Exps 5 REMtE EBERNVEE RESER BFRENE D (%)
Mr. YEUNG Interest of a controlled 300,000,000 Shares (L)™ 75%?

corporation

s SEHAE R 300,000,000 A% B 7 (L)
Ms. WONG Interest of spouse 300,000,000 Shares (L) 75%"%
Tt [RR=E e 300,000,000 A& A& 17 (L)
Notes: B
1. The letter “L" denotes to the person with long position in the shares of the 1. F& LI EZATRAAR R, ([’ D HFaE -

Company (the “Share(s)”).

2. The calculation is based on the total number of 400,000,000 Shares in issue
after completion of the global offering.

3. Our Company is owned as to approximately 75% by Peiport Alpha. The entire
issued share capital of Peiport Alpha is owned as to 50% and 30% by Mr.
YEUNG and Ms. WONG, respectively. Ms. WONG is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG
and therefore each of Ms. WONG and Mr. YEUNG is deemed to be interested
in Shares held by Peiport Alpha pursuant to the SFO. Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG
and Peiport Alpha together are a group of Controlling Shareholders of our
Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Ordinary Shares of an Associated Corporation —
Peiport Alpha:

EERTRARRKRSG  HEROR
BREIETNEERAR (&)

MEBEE — REMBEZEBRRG

Number of Approximate
Capacity/ ordinary shares and percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest class of securities shareholding (%)
ExpE 51/ RntE EBERNOBE RESEH FREBAE D (%)
Mr. YEUNG Beneficiary owner 8 Shares (L) 80%"
o pitas EmEAA 8RR A% 17 (L)
Ms. WONG Interest of spouse 8 Shares (L) 80%?
Tzt Ao (B == 8RR A% (L™
Mr. CT YEUNG Beneficiary owner 2 Shares (L)® 20%
BiIRFE S E EnEAA 2 A& (L)
Notes: BiE

1. The letter “L" denotes to the person with long position in the shares.

2. The calculation is based on the total number of 10 shares of Peiport Alpha in
issue.

3. The entire issued share capital of Peiport Alpha is owned as to 5 shares and 3
shares by Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG respectively. Since Ms. WONG is the
spouse of Mr. YEUNG, pursuant to the SFO, they are deemed to be interested
in 80% of issued share capital of Peiport Alpha and the Shares held by Peiport
Alpha.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual
Report, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEERE (E)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executive's interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” in this section, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2022 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the “Connected Transactions” as set
out in this section and the related party transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements of this
Annual Report, no Directors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors nor their respective associates had an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme"”) has been conditionally adopted on 18
December 2018.

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants (the “Eligible Participants”), to take up options
to subscribe for the shares:

(1) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(2) any directors (including executive, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) of
our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(3) any advisers (professional or otherwise), consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to our Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(4) related entities who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to our Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing
Date and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme (i.e. 17 December 2028). As at the
date of this Annual Report, the remaining life of the Share
Option Scheme was around five years and eight months.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEERE (E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 shares, representing
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the Listing
Date and as at the date of this Annual Report. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding options) within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any grant or further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. A grant of share options
under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the option). In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, which
would result in the shares issued and to be issued, upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding), to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted on or
before the relevant acceptance date upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that such a
period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised. The exercise price of the share options
shall be not less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options, which must be a date on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in securities;
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
before the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's share as at the date of offer. The Share Option
Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions Eligible
Participants had or may have made to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will provide Eligible Participants
an opportunity to have a personal stake in our Company with
the view to achieving the following objectives: (i) motivate
Eligible Participants to optimise their performance efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or
otherwise maintain on-going business relationship with
Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

No options had been granted or agreed to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme during the year and up to the date
of this Annual Report. The Company did not have any
outstanding share options, warrants and convertible
instruments into shares as at 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this Annual Report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEERE (E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As of the date of this Annual Report, so far as was known to
any Director, or chief executive of our Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to our Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRRS - HEROREEE
RS

RAFEREAH  BARBESHITHRER
PR AT AL (RRREERITHRARIRIN)
KRB « AR N BAERE A AR
BREERBEESFKPREGAIFEXVEE2 RS
D EARAAR T R FR RS R SOK
BEARBRIEE 7 & BB (P 5 336 1RRE
BB BRMATREnER R FAR

Number of Approximate

Name of Capacity/ ordinary shares and percentage of
Shareholder Nature of interest class of securities shareholding (%)

EBERNEE
BRHEEEB B ERtE RFEZER BFRBAE 2L (%)
Peiport Alpha® Beneficial owner 300,000,000 Shares (L)™ 75%%?
a0 NE E=EEA 300,000,000 f& A% 17 (L)™
Mr. YEUNG® Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 Shares (L) 75%?

corporation

BRED Rt EE kR 300,000,000 A& B 2 (L)@
Ms. WONG® Interest of spouse 300,000,000 Shares (L)™ 75%%?
Fi+e AC B = 300,000,000 f& & {7 (L)
Notes: Pk -
1. The letter “L" denotes to the entity’s with long position in the securities. 1. FEILI EZEENESNTR -
2. The calculation is based on the total number of 400,000,000 Shares in issue 2. ER2IREETKIE D BT (D 4 £0400,000,000 A%

after completion of the global offering.

3. Our Company is owned as to approximately 756% by Peiport Alpha. The entire
issued share capital of Peiport Alpha is owned as to 50% and 30% by Mr.
YEUNG and Ms. WONG, respectively. Ms. WONG is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG
and therefore each of Ms. WONG and Mr. YEUNG is deemed to be interested
in Shares held by Peiport Alpha pursuant to the SFO. Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG
and Peiport Alpha together are a group of Controlling Shareholders of our
Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual
Report, none of the substantial or significant shareholders or
other persons, other than the Directors and chief executive
of the Company whose interests are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” in
this section, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than the employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are disclosed in note 29 to
the financial statements. These transactions were conducted
in accordance with terms as agreed between us and the
respective related parties. Our Directors confirm that all
related party transactions during the year ended 31
December 2022 were conducted on normal commercial
terms that were reasonable and in the interest of our Group
as a whole. Save as disclosed in below sections of this
Annual Report, there were no other connected transactions
or non-exempted continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this Annual Report. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE (HE)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Renewed Lease Agreements

BHEXS

(A)

During the year, the Group entered into a number of
renewed lease agreement (together, the “Renewed
Lease Agreements”, and each the “Renewed Lease
Agreement”) with the connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules) in our ordinary and usual course of
business, which constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules upon our Listing.

Details of the Renewed Lease Agreements are set out

EEHEHR

FR - AEEER T ERFBIEF HREE
/\i(i%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ J)ETI%IEEEE

Enz(RE [ ZEE28HERHE]
B EEHRER=E]) - E?%Tﬁja&ﬁ$
AaEl EmERE EmRREKSERE
R °

EEMEEHENFBEHIIOT

below:
Maximum
Date of lease Location of Area of annualrent  Use of
agreement Landlord Tenant property property Term payable  property
HEHZAHS E 3 HE WENE NEER 3 ERENEHE  WEAR
9 January 2022 Ms. WONG Guangzhou Peiport Unit 2301, 276.60 sq.m Period of RMB215,748  Office
Sijing Optoelectronics  Office Block 1, three years
System Limited Jinniu Wanda Plaza, commencing
("Peiport Guangzhou”)  No. 118 Renmin from 19
North Road, January 2022
2nd Section,
Jinniu District,
Chengdu,
Sichuan Province,
the PRC
k- St Tt NEEBBABRS REmIERETE 276,60 T K BZZ-CF AR®2157487C  WAE
—ANB BRAR(HREEM])  FEZRARLEE18 —A+hAH
REFBERGRT RABH=F
8123015
3 March 2022 Ms. WONG Beijing Peiport Jingdu Flat 2-7 on 235.45 sq.m Period of RMB756,000  Office
Technology Limited level 121 Block 1, one year
("Peiport Beijing”) Yuetan Mansion, commencing
No. 2 Yuetan North from 12 March
Street, Xicheng 2022
District,
Beijing, the PRC
St 2 Fat TREERAREER RELRTEREA 23545 K = e S 3 ARET56,000T  HAE
=A=H AR(MHEELER]) B2 AEAE— =A+Z=H
BE121182-7% eRH—F
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
ESEHRE(E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BERXS (&)
Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued) HEBRER S (&)
(A) Renewed Lease Agreements (Continued) (A) BEHEEHZRE)
Maximum
Date of lease Location of Area of annualrent  Use of
agreement Landlord Tenant property property Term payable  property
HEHHA S E ¥ #E L/EJA- NEER F58 ERENERE WEAR
3 March 2022 Ms. WONG Peiport Beijing Flat2-8 on level 121 123.56 sq.m Period of RMB477,600  Office
Block 1, Yuetan one year
Mansion, No. 2 commencing
Yuetan North Street, from 12 March
Xicheng District, 2022
Beijing, the PRC
—F-CF Fat BELR RELRTEREA 12356 F 5K =S ARK477600T  HRE
S BitE 2 A AR — =A+z=H
FE121182-8% ERE—F
28 April 2022 Peiport Peiport Aero Car Parking Space, 10.53 sq.m Period of HK$63,600  Car parking space
Scientific No. 59 on the Ground two years
Floor, Harbour View commencing
Gardens, Taikoo from 1 May
Shing, Hong Kong 2022
—B-CF BERHE BRI EEXEBEREE  1083FAK B-%--F 63,6008  REfI
mA=+/N\R 1 T 593 BN iz ot =|
ERBEREF
15 December Peiport Peiport Industries Limited Room 1301, 156.12 sq.m Period of HK$600,000  Warehouse,
2022 Scientific ("Peiport Industries”) ~ Westlands Centre, two years system
20 Westlands Road, commencing integration and
Taikoo Place, from 1 January service centre
Hong Kong 2023
—F-CF BERHE BREXBERAA BEREXEGERRK20  156.12FFK B-Z-=% 60000087 B ZHEA
+=A+&A (=B SRERFL 111301 —R—AH PR L
S EABREF
15 December Peiport Peiport Aero Room 1302, 169.23 sq.m Period of HK$600,000  Warehouse,
2022 Scientific Westlands Centre, two years system
20 Westlands Road, commencing integration and
Taikoo Place, from 1 January service centre
Hong Kong 2023
—F-CF BERHE BERR EEXEGERRK20 15923 FFK B-Z-=% 600,000 EE - ZHEEER
+=A+AA SRERPRL 1121302 —A-Bie RE L
S REME
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE (HE)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BERS (#E)
Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued) HEBER S (&)
(A) Renewed Lease Agreements (Continued) (A) EEHREWH=E)
Maximum
Date of lease Location of Area of annual rent  Use of
agreement Landlord Tenant property property Term payable  property
HEHHA S ¥x HF MEAE NEER £ ERENER WEAR
15 December Peiport Peiport Industries Room 1307, 158.29 sq.m Period of HK$600,000  Warehouse,
2022 Scientific Westlands Centre, two years system
20 Westlands Road, commencing integration and
Taikoo Place, from 1 January service centre
Hong Kong 2023
“E-CF BERHE EFESE BRERAHERR 158.29F 777k A-Z-=F 60000087 £E - ZHEAK
+ZA+HA 0FEFT L1 —R-H PR L
1307 % ERERE
15 December Peiport Peiport Aero Car Parking Space, 11.76 sq.m Period of HK$50,400  Car parking space
2022 Scientific No. P18 on 1st Floor, two years
Westlands Centre, commencing
20 Westlands Road, from 1 January
Taikoo Place, 2023
Hong Kong
“B-CF BERHE EERR BERKAHERR 1176 F 7K BZR=F 504007  FREfL
+=A+RA 0FERP L1 —A-H
1857 &1 EABME
15 December Mr. YEUNG Peiport Guangzhou Unit 25623, Wuyang ~ 139.55 sq.m Period of RMB167,460  Office
2022 Xincheng Plaza, two years
No.111 Siyou commencing
New Road, Yuexiu from 1 January
District, Guangzhou, 2023
Guangdong Province,
the PRC
—EoCf BEE BEEM PEERLEEMTE 13955 F K BZZ-=F AR¥K167,4600C HAE
+=A+aA FEFAFEHRIHR —A—-B
BFIM2523 % ERERE
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(A) Renewed Lease Agreements (Continued)

According to HKFRS16 Leases which has come into
effect on 1 January 2019, the Group is required to
recognise the value of the right-of-use asset on its
statement of financial position in connection with the
Renewed Lease Agreements. The proposed annual cap
of approximately HK$6,100,000 is set on the total value
of the right-of-use assets relating to the individual
leasing agreements entered into by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022, which are
calculated with reference to the aggregate annual rent
under the full lease term of each individual leasing
agreement newly entered into for the year ended 31
December 2022, discounted by the Company's
incremental borrowing rate. Right-of-use asset is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG are the Controlling
Shareholders and executive Directors, while Peiport
Scientific is owned as to 70% and 30% by Mr. YEUNG
and Ms. WONG, respectively and is an associate of the
Controlling Shareholders. Accordingly, each of Mr.
YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Scientific is a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of
the annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions under the Renewed Lease Agreement
exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%, the transactions
under the Renewed Lease Agreement are subject to
the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

On 15 December 2022, the Company on behalf of its
associates as the tenants entered into a framework
lease agreement in respect of the properties provided
by Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Scientific to
streamline to leasing relationship in respect of the
leased properties. The framework lease agreement is
effective on 1 January 2023 and be valid for a term of
two years.

BHEXS (&)
FEBERS (K)

(A)

EFEEER (H)

BEERZZ—NF—A—BHERNSE
EISREERE 16 E - NEEE
FEPBRAREREAZEEEHER
REENFERAEEEER - ERFE L
PR #7%%6,100,000 7T + JIiRIRA R AR
BHE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—BIEE
AIVHENEE R ENEREEES
B W2BRBEE_ZT_—_F+=_H
=+ —HEFEHITINSHERNEE
HENTEHANFEEESBE B
NEIMIEEEENEITETE - FHE
BETHPANUNEGRETE -

BRERIZTARERBRERNITE
£ MEFEREABLTEREZLIS R
B T70% K 30% #a - WAIERRRE
BN A o Eitt - BIE _E AR AIZE 14A
Z oB%k4s - TR RFERARESEA
KAFIMBEANTL o

HREERERZE THORBEEER SN
FELREERESLEBIB1%E
Bb6%  EEMEHEE TRHETRS
BETHE - AERFEEMBEE K
EERHRET EMRANFE VAT IE K
HHLERITE ©

RZZEZ—F+=A+HA8  ARAEK
REBERRWERAELPHBRE - TX
TREFEHEREMNETTLHEESR
W WEBEHEEDMENTEERRFR - %
HEERWBHFEN-_E-_=F—HF—H
£ BRABAME -
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEERE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(B) Existing Lease Agreements

BERSZ (&)
BEREXS (&)
(B) RAMEHHE

Our Group has entered into a number of lease
agreement (together, the “Lease Agreements”, and
each the "Lease Agreement”) with the connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) in our ordinary
and usual course of business, which constitute
continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules upon our Listing.

Details of these continuing connected transactions of

AEBERARE R —REHBIETHEEHA
BAL(EER EMRADTLZREE
k(R [ HERZ k&5 —0H [H
Sl F&Fﬁtﬁf&%ﬁktm%ﬁ
E'JIETE’JT%,?EEE R5 e

AEENZERBERERHNFHEEHT

our Group are set out below: N
Maximum
Date of lease annual rent  Use of
agreement Landlord Tenant Location of Property Area of property Term payable  property
HEHERH E 3 HE LIE 3L MEER HH BEEMFHE WXAR
9 March 2017 Ms. WONG  Peiport Beijing Flat 2-7 on level 121 235.45 sq.m Period of five years RMB360,000  Office
Block 1, Yuetan Mansion, commencing from
No. 2 Yuetan North Street, 12 March 2017
Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC
—TtF Tt 33198 =GN i 23B645F K ZE—LF AR#360,000  #HERE
=ANR AEtio R AEARE ZA+=Hk
—E121182-7% RARF
9 March 2017 Ms. WONG  Peiport Beijing Flat 2-8 on level 121 123.56 sq.m Period of five years RMB357,600  Office
Block 1, Yuetan Mansion, commencing from
No. 2 Yuetan North Street, 12 March 2017
Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC
S Tt BRIER REE R E 12356 F Ak ZE—LF AR¥357,600t  HERE
=ANE At AERE ZA+ZRi
—E121182-8% RELE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was
no material change in the Lease Agreements. There
was also no termination of the Lease Agreements, nor
was there any failure to terminate when the restrictions
that led to the adoption of the Lease Agreements are
removed. The Lease Agreements expired on 11 March
2022 and the continuing connected transactions were
carried upon the terms set out in “Connected
Transactions — Continuing Connected Transactions —
(A) Renewed Lease Agreements” in this Annual
Report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
ESEHRE(E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(B) Existing Lease Agreements (Continued)

The aggregate of the maximum annual rent payable by
the Group under all of the Lease Agreements described
above is approximately RMB179,400 which shall
constitute the maximum amount of rent payable by us
to Ms. WONG for the year ended 31 December 2022.
In relation to the Lease Agreements for the properties
in Hong Kong, our Group was not charged any rentals
in respect of our usage thereof before the entering into
of the Lease Agreements for the properties in Hong
Kong.

Ms. WONG is our Controlling Shareholder and
executive Director. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Lease Agreements will
constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Since each of applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) as defined under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules for the Lease Agreements is expected to
be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual
basis, the transactions contemplated under the Lease
Agreements are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement but will be exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(1)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

on normal commercial terms or better; and
according to the agreement governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company's shareholders as a whole.

BHEXS (&)

KEREXS (&)

(B)

BEHEE R (&)

NEBIRE E XAl Fr A TS s e
e FHREN A AR 179,4007T
EEBEMREBEEZE-_ZT_-_—_F+_-A
=t+t—HLEFEAREFLZTIXTHRES
e pEBSYENHEERZMS * K
FAINEBMENHEERZR  AEET
B R A B M W E R & o

FRERRMANEBRBRRERTES -
Hit - HEBZRE NBETHARZ KB
RARBR ETRANE14AT T HRE

ARARE EMRANE1407I6MATES
BHENRZNSERE LR (TEIEF
BR)EHETEBAEF01%ELR
5% WAERHE MIETHNR HEE
FHRE  FEEMARAEHET BER
BT EHRAFEAAZE THBILRE
HEFERRTE ©

BIE FTRBIE14AL51E B IEHNITEE
DERFEEERESS  TEIAXSHERES
S TR AT IERETAL

(1)

(2)

3)

RASEBEE R —REFBRES

RIERBEEGRRREEGRTR &
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEERE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Ernst & Young,
the Company's external auditors, were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Financial statements and with reference to
Practice Note 740 Auditors” Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the
HKICPA. Ernst & Young issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and
confirmed the continuing connected transactions did not
exceed the respective annual caps during the year. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no connected
transactions or continuing connected tractions which fell to
be disclosed in accordance with the provisions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the disclosure
of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions.

REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the remuneration policy for
employees of the Group is determined based on their
responsibilities, qualifications, performance, experience and
seniority which are reviewed periodically.

Compensation of Directors of the Group is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, approved by the Board and
authorised by the shareholders at the AGM of the Company,
which is based on the Group's performance and the
Directors’ respective contributions to the Group.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” on pages 59 to 61 of this Annual Report.
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KEREXS (&)
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by our
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section on pages 30 to 49 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this Annual Report, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the
public.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event after the reporting period are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for
the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the independent

auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong
29 March 2023

EXER
ARFRMNEBLEERFABNAFER
EF0E9E [EERRE] — -
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LB 25% HARALES -

BEMREE

BERRNERETEFBENMBRRM T
30

w

BB Em
EEBRRBFAE LR HIRBR B 20K
SRR EB A RAR BB ZEEN -

EEBEEM

BRELE
FERBITEF

&5
—E-=F=A-tNH

BRERBRAT /2022 F 8

71



/2

Independent Auditor’s Report

B R RENRE

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY=x

To the shareholders of Peiport Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Peiport Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 168, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B R RET RS ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RRNER

BECREEASIMASRMNE BRI E
Al (TEAFA LR ETER - BFERFE
AT AENECEEESNERE [ K25 F
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B 2 BET RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BAREEREE

HRELSE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EENERNMNEEARERSEE

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables

B WA R W 1R 0 6 (B P A

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of HK$75,098,000, after making a provision of
HK$2,272,000. The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide impairment for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
under HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime ECLs
for all trade and bills receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade and bills receivables are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due, and the
calculation of ECLs is based on the historical observable
default rates and forward-looking information. The ECLs of
trade and bills receivables were HK$2,272,000 as at 31
December 2022.

RZZEZZF+-A=+—H ' ESE{ELHE#E?2272,000% T
BE S EINGIE R EWEIR 75,098,000/ 7T © EEBEHEAGLE
HAEBUBHRELEAZ IR THEMEESE(FEHEEEE] T
RRERE  ZERAFTIHE B S EWGIE R ERERER 2
BHEEEE B E2RHEEEE B2EUKFKEREREERE
BELAREERRFALRGHABRHESE  MEHEEBSENENB
FABENERERAEEERNGTE RZE_F+HA=1+—
HHE 5 e IE R E RSB TE B (E B EE 52,272,000 87T

We focused on this area because it required a high level of
management judgement and estimation and the amounts
involved were material.
EEHIRERETHENEZTESKTINEREB A KA - Bk
EAEH o

The Group's disclosures of the trade and bills receivables
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 17 to the financial
statements.

EXEHE S RKFIBERERZENRES NI BHRENMTE24 3
17 e
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We assessed the Group's internal control
over the credit control of trade and bills
receivables. We also reviewed
management’'s assessment regarding
the recoverability of the Group's trade
and bills receivables by evaluating the
assumptions and methodologies of the
ECL model, obtaining evidence which
included background search and review
of repayment history, checking the
accuracy of ageing of trade and bills
receivables and forward-looking
information, and recalculating ECLs. We
also assessed the disclosures related to
trade and bills receivables in the
consolidated financial statements.
EEFE EEBRHEBE S EREHIEREREE
EEZEHHRES - TEBBTEEHEE
EBEENHEBERA L  BERBSEBE(BEES
ABREFHENGCE)  REZHEKFHIER
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HREEEE  ZEUAEHEEEN B5EH
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B R RET RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRELEE

HREZSE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

ESNERNNEERRERER

Allowance for inventory obsolescence

REFEEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had inventories of
HK$52,938,000, after making allowance for inventory
obsolescence of HK$2,179,000. Allowance for inventory
obsolescence is based on management judgement using
the available data and existing circumstances, including, but
not limited to, the physical conditions, market selling prices
and estimated selling costs of the inventories.
RZTEZZ_F+-A=+—H ' ESEELEREGCERRE
2,179,000/ L1 B 17K 52,938,000 7T - REFEBEHENE
BECAAGHEEBEERBRFEA(BEETRAFENERMRA
M5 & B RG T HERKAR) e L 892 -

We focused on this area as the inventories were material to
the consolidated financial statements and the determination
of allowance for inventory obsolescence involved significant
management judgement and estimation.
EERIZBEB AR GFEHGREVBRREEN  BEERET
BEEFRERENEANAE REE -

The Group’s disclosures of the inventories are included in
notes 2.4, 3 and 16 to the financial statements.
BEEEHTFENREHNUEmERMNMTE24 3R 16

We attended management’s inventory
counts and observed the processes at
material inventory locations, including
observing the processes implemented by
management to identify and monitor
obsolete inventories. We evaluated the
assessments made by management in
respect of the identification of inventory
obsolescence by assessing the inventory
costing, ageing reports, and obsolete
inventories on a sampling basis. We re-
calculated the allowance for inventory
obsolescence in accordance with the
Group's policy.
EEEREEENTERMUNEEFEHES
BREMERET  BEHREEERHSMNRER
BREFEMERNET - &FRBHERT ETF
B - RERIMERRERFE - #EUTGHER
EREHIREFEMELNTMGE TFR
B BEEENBRENGTERETERRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B 2 BET RS ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B R RET RS ()

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the
Company's audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

EERNGEURBRREARENEE(E)

BERRERE %’ATW%& Bg((&%%
B2 WY TEITHRE B8 EXENMHK
WEMAE ©

BRBMRER G S M B RRAEEDN
B

BEENERRAERERR LEAMBHRERE
BNFEANREFHERMEBHEAHRR
o WHELBEEEERNRBERE - BF
ZEm BT UESBE)RE KRtz Kk
EREEMBE - BEETERABRENARTA
EREMALE FSAREMEE -

AEZERSEANZE  BIEREREES
BRBEAETHNEZRE -—BEXRERRAET
FERS AREEE IR o SHARIRIM P DA R X RFF B AR
5l - AR BERSERMBER TAIRE
FERERERAMBRRELNEERER -
QAR B A S AR BRI -

ERBEEAGBEAETEZNBEY  BF
EREEFE B’\%&I%T’?iﬂ&#%ﬁ%%l«

e
RREE - BT

o BRIRFHEARA M B BMEKR AR UFENE
RMEBMEAHERER - FAEZER

RRARATERER  BERRLE
ENERERERBTNE R IRHAR
HREFEPRER  RE FBER
ERERASOEBERABES 2 L Bt
RERRARFMERNEXRHHEAR
B REEHE AN R M E R EXH
HER o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

/8

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2023

BRBAMRER GRS M B RRAEREN
B1E (&)

BELHEZZEQREMENEZRE  KRE
ZHE BERERERE  BREFEERTH
I 9 PR BB ) ) (E (] AR ©

BEENMELZESRRBH HHAEECDE
STABBMIEARRERER  WHEERE
AREAREMER A EE S B IENMAR
FEREMEE AR AEREEPIRIATTEI R
ERANRERE(WER) -

REBZZERBNERT  BEFHEXF
BARAVBRRNBRESEENSEE
AfMEKEREZER FEERUEMBED
MR EEIE - BRIBDARER T ARKE
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
melEakHEMEE KSR

Year ended 31 December 2022 EZ —F — —F+_H=+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
—E-—fF T —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B THERT TAET
REVENUE W& 5 245,612 279,371
Cost of sales SHERK R (172,883) (197,020)
Gross profit E5 72,729 82,351
Other income and gains, net H U A MU R4 5 2,302 3,068
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERY (30,461) (30,735)
Administrative expenses TR (34,907) (30,101)
Other expenses Hf% (14,405) (4,184)
Finance costs MR 7 (525) (488)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB A (FE) R 6 (5,267) 19,911
Income tax credit/(expense) FrEHER,/ (FAX) 10 1,659 (3,171)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE(BR)&wA (3,608) 16,740
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hth 2 E Mk
INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income AEERHREER D EE
that may be reclassified to profit or BROEMEE(EE)/
loss in subsequent periods: Iz
Exchange differences on translation BEINREBRIE K =5
of foreign operations (3,725) 1,652
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ &£REM2HE (&FE), i
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NBBE
NET OF TAX (3,725) 1,652
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ &£g2E (F8) /WEA%E
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (7,333) 18,392
(Loss)/profit attributable to: ITE A (B18),/ &7 :
Owners of the parent SREHEE A (3,195) 16,982
Non-controlling interests JEIR AR AERS (413) (242)
(3,608) 16,740
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ATEHEEZE
attributable to: (B18) Wk :
Owners of the parent BRAREAA (6,920) 18,634
Non-controlling interests IR ER (413) (242)
(7,333) 18,392
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBREREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEER (EE)BF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted E SV 12 HK(0.80) cents B fli  HK4.25 cents &l

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R &

31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-—F ===
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BRE &R 13 7,688 8,078
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 9,317 5,070
Intangible assets EAE 15 883 1,088
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 23 7,274 3,442
Total non-current assets IEmBEELE 25,162 17,678
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 16 52,938 68,251
Trade and bills receivables 5 RWGRIE K RN E & 17 75,098 100,520
Prepayments, deposits and TERHRIE ~ me Kk
other receivables H b el ZoE 18 21,983 22,074
Cash and cash equivalents RENRESEEY 19 244,598 223,963
Total current assets MBEERE 394,617 414,808
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables 2 5 e FIE 20 20,759 27,091
Other payables and accruals H i fE {5 B N s B A 21 17,250 14,881
Contract liabilities BHEE 22 15,460 14,754
Lease liabilities HEaRE 14 5,142 4,166
Tax payable FEf R IE 4,268 4,952
Total current liabilities mEREAE 62,879 65,844
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 331,738 348,964
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERREAE
LIABILITIES 356,900 366,642
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Lease liabilities HEARE 14 4,382 1,348
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEE & 23 76 119
Total non-current liabilities JEmEAERE 4,458 1,467
Net assets EEFE 352,442 365,175

B ERBRAR /2022 F 8,



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
e IEAR IR ()

31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-—fF B
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

k3 THET FABT
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners B RAEEE AELELS

of the parent
Share capital A% 2R 24 4,000 4,000
Reserves i 25 348,197 360,517
352,197 364,517

Non-controlling interests FEIERR RE RS 245 658
Total equity EmBE 352,442 365,175
YEUNG Lun Ching WONG Kwan Lik
HimiE EX:: )
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mREEREER
Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z —F - —F1+-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRARA AL
Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share Share Other  surplus fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve®  reserve®  reseve®  profitst Total interests equity
EERE  EREE E
A RbEE* EbkE B @R RERR? @t Ea  EafE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
Thr Thr TEx  TEr T TEr  TEr  TAr  TEn
(note 24) (note 25)  (note 25)
(Kzta) (Wz2s) (W)
. __________________________________________________________________________________________________________|]
At 1 January 2021 R=E--%-H-H 4,000 102,246 (66,843) 5,000 287 306593 351,283 - 361,283
Profitflloss) for the year EEEH/ (BB = = = = - 16,982 16,982 (242) 16,740
Other comprehensive income  FREM2ENE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BENAEENELZE
translation of foreign operations - - - - 1,652 - 1,662 - 1,652
Total comprehensive incomeflloss) ERZENE /(FE) %
for the year - - - - 1,652 16,982 18,634 (242) 18,392
Transfer from retained profits EEaREEH - - - 485 - (485) - - -
Final 2020 dividend paid BRZZ_2ERHKRE - 5400 - - - ] - (b0
Capital contribution from SRR E
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 900 900
At 31 December 2021 and RZE-_—%+-A=1-H
1 January 2022 RZZ--F-8-H 4,000 96,846 (66,843) 5,485 1939 32300 364517 658 365,175
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (3,195)  (3,195) (413) (3,608
Other comprehensive loss EREMZABE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BENEIEBHELES
translation of foreign operations - - - - (3,725) - (3,725) - (3,725)
Total comprehensive loss EREAEREE
for the year - - - - (3,725) (3,195) (6,920) (413) (7,333)
Transfer from retained profits ~~ EEBRBEA - - - 138 - (138) - - -
Final 2021 dividend paid BRZEZ-ER#RE - (5400 = = = - (5400 - (5400
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—F+-A=1-H 4,000 91,446 (66,843) 5,623 (1,786) 319,757 352,197 245 352,442
3 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of @ WERBEREGAVEMRRARMBIES FHBE

HK$348,197,000 (2021: HK$360,517,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

348,197,000/ 70 (=ZF=—4 : 360,517,000/7T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #%Z —ZF ——

FEr-—A=1—HILFE

2022 2021
=hi==r = = —4E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & TET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHABRENE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax: BRERT(BE) 8 (5,267) 19,911
Adjustments for: FATEBIELAZE
Finance costs BIAS R AR 7 525 488
Bank interest income RITFIEUA 5 (345) (170)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BER
property, plant and equipment REEREE 6 = 581
Depreciation of property, M - WERERETE
plant and equipment 6 2,382 3,158
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEAEEERE 6 6,939 5,938
Amortisation of intangible assets E A E 6 523 5563
(Reversal of)/provision for inventory RERS (BE) %
obsolescence, net 6 (405) 347
(Reversal of)/provision for doubtful JFE UG =B R BE (#E)
receivables, net BiEFE 6 (502) 1,009
Written-off of trade receivables EMEHE R IE 6 3,413 2,063
7,263 33,868
Decrease in inventories FERD 12,832 2,612
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 RN IE & R R
bills receivables w3 n) 15,935 (17,262)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TBRFHIE « R REMEK
deposits and other receivables I (gm),m (769) 1,246
Increase in trade payables B 5 e FRIE A 3,427 8,831
Increase in other payables and accruals — E i &~ T8 [ fE =+ & A% N 3,514 1,164
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities &% & &0,/ i) 1,412 (671)
Cash generated from operations EEMELRS 43,614 29,788
Interest received =SS 345 170
Interest paid BEAFE (525) (488)
Income taxes paid BERATER (2,598) (3,222)
Net cash flows from operating activities K& EBFEH SRS 54 40,836 26,248
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBFMESHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, Wi - BELEEEE
plant and equipment 13 (2,394) (2,586)
Additions of intangible assets RNEEVEE (342) -
Additions of time deposits with AEBEARRERHHEZRN
original maturity of more than = @Az EE T BTER
three months when acquired (39,000) -
Net cash flows used in investing REEBMAESREFHA
activities (41,736) (2,586)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

SGERTRER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z —F - —F+_HA=+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
—E-C—F = = —4E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE TET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETBMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Principal portion of lease payments HENRAEHD 26(b) (7,171) (6,129)
Dividend paid B E (5,400) (5,400)
Net cash flows used in financing BEESFAESRE R
activities (12,571) (11,529)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN BeRBLEEYORD)/
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS b iIp:R (13,471) 12,133
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERIBEEEY
beginning of year 223,963 210,150
Effect of foreign exchange rate HINGEE b R B Y R B R
changes, net (4,894) 1,680
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S£AXRERREZEY
END OF YEAR 205,598 223,963
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRBEEEEYERII
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Non-pledged and non-restricted cash EIRE R IEZR IR S &
and bank balances IRITAEER 19 199,969 220,180
Non-pledged and non-restricted SRR I FE IR 5 T HR T X
time deposits 19 44,629 3,783
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in 44 BMSARREFMTIRE &
the consolidated statement of HEEEY
financial position 19 244,598 223,963
Non-pledged time deposits with YR B R 2 HA B A8 38 = 8 A &Y
original maturity of more than I E BRTE X
three months when acquired (39,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated &G&aReReRMiRER
in the consolidated statement of HEZEY
cash flows 205,598 223,963

B ERBRAR /2022 F 8,



Notes to Financial Statements
R %Y

31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAREEER
REERERAR(IARRAE]) ARAE
HEAMKZINERAA - AR
fit ¥ = B b #k A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

Peiport Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

RRARR—HREZERRAE - FAXR
AINREKE AT (5 [ AN RE]) T2
ERENAREE®R LR : () BRE
PR E dm B R TS e (i) 3B R A = EE e
AR5

The Company is an investment holding company.
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) were principally engaged in
the provision of (i) thermal imaging products and
services; (ii) self-stabilised imaging products and
services; and (iii) general aviation products and
services.

EERR ARENEKRERAR /M
FREEARAR  HRNEBERRE
E(RBHBARES )M -

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Group is Peiport Alpha Ltd., which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI").

Information about subsidiaries Ft B A =l E R

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as RATIMERATRNEERT

follows:
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ ERAR BRTEER/ KA
£ L -pioky ZfRA BEEDL TEXRK
Direct Indirect
BE B
% %

Peiport Bravo Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong Hong Kong dollars 100 - Investment holding
("HKS$") 1

REERBRAH ABERRES/BA 18T(Ex)) REZR

Peiport Creative Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding

RERIHERAR ABERRES/BA 1T REZR

Peiport Delta Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding

REEREERAR ABERRES/BA 1T REZR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bt 3 3R B = (48

31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

£

Place of

incorporation/
registration and

business

R/ AR

BEwH

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

BREER/

BT

to the Company

RAREEEHR (K)

MEARER(HE)

Principal activities

TEEH

Indirect

R

%

Connax Education Limited

BEHEARAT

Peiport Scientific Aero Limited

HEMAARA]

Peiport Industries Limited

DNL Optoelec Systems Limited
BEXEZRERAA
Dr X Academy of Robotics and

Coding Hong Kong Limited

BELHEARER(BR)
BRRA

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong

30

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong

HK$1
18T

HK$1

18T

HK$2,000,000

2,000,000/ 7T

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$3,000,000

3,000,000/ 7T

100 Investment holding
RERR

100  Provision of (i) thermal imaging
products and services; (i) self-
stabilised imaging products
and services; and (iii) general
aviation products and services

TR ftt () BRI E o R MR B
(i) BRENGENRRY : &
(i) B A= X R

100  Provision of (i) thermal imaging
products and services; (i) self-
stabilised imaging products
and services; and (iii) general
aviation products and services

Heflt () BB 2 o B IR
i) BRENGENRRY : &
(i) 3 AR 22 B o X R 7

100 Provision of thermal imaging
products and services

RATARGE m KR

70 Provision of science, technology,
engineering, mathematics,
coding and robotics education
services

RERE - ffl - IR 82
2 RN A R
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAREEER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ ERAR BRTEER/ KAREL
£ okt A BEEDL TEXK
Direct Indirect
B B
% %

Peiport (Shanghai) Optoelectronics ~ People’s Republic Renminbi ("RMB") = 100 Provision of (i) thermal imaging
Technology Limited © of China 20,180,000 products and services; i) self-
(the “"PRC")/ stabilised imaging products
Mainland China and services; and (iii) general
aviation products and services

BE(LE)AERRERATD  REARLNE ARE(TARS]) Heflt () BRI 2 on B IR
(T B,/ S BN 20,180,000 7 i) BRERGENRRY : &

(il 38 A 22 B o X R 7
Guangzhou Peiport Sijing PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100 Provision of (i) thermal imaging
Optoelectronics System Limited ©! products and services; (i) self-
stabilised imaging products
and services; and (iii) general
aviation products and services

BENGEREBXEZAERARY  FE/HEA ARH Heflt () B 2 on B R
20,000,000 70 (i) B A R EE SR ¢

(i) 38 R 22 B o X R 7
Beijing Peiport Jingdu Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,100,000 - 100 Provision of (i) thermal imaging
Limited ®! products and services; (i) self-
stabilised imaging products
and services; and (iii) general
aviation products and services

EREERBRRAER AR B/ HER AR¥5,100,0007 Heflt () BB 2 on B R
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REREBER (E)
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
B/ SR BRITLER/ KD FEL
£ B AR A BREDL FTEEK
Direct Indirect
B %
% %
. ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Peiport (Zhuhai) Air Equipment PRC/Mainland China United States - 100  Provision of general aviation
Manufacturing Limited @ dollars ("US$") products and services
250,000
RS MERMBEERARY FE/PENM 250,000 7T REBAMZEER KRB
(EF)
(a) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law (a) RIERBEEFMAIINEBE RS
(b) Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law (b) BIEPEEEFMABRAR
BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 REEXE
The financial statements have been prepared in WIERRIDBEBSSMAE ([EHE
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting et A® ) BHENEBI SRS ZEL
Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all HKFRSs, (BB BmEER]) (REMERAH
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and BRE R HAEGSTER([FESET
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of £R]) M2E) ABARSHRAESE
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting EATEM R ER EMmEE - &%
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the ELABHRE - I HmERABITE
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies - BTEEEHNEEZRERLNT
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the i BB RFERIN

historical cost convention. The financial statements are
presented in HK$ and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

B ERBRAR /2022 F 8,
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 REBEEE)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

REANREE (&)

1B M H M2 S @A 5
BRASES AR NES A RIFERE
= EL RS YO RS HRE
MER - TEABAAKRESEKE QAR
MR ZHEERERARHEEREE
s WA AxXhBEEREERNES
FRERZBURE -

W= E MIERERR EX At =18 H E
RZ-HEIZHALBRE(L  AEEEE
MAMERETENREHR - R—RHMH
BARNHEAEERES  HEAEKE
I - AR5 AR ©

MAEBREMB AR ZEGE  BE
RIEROZMBRARNEE(BRERE)
KEBME : ()VEMFERESNREE
Ko (i) st AN O RETIE L Z 58 - W HER
() EWEAR BRI A FE : ()T REER
B RFE - R i) TEEL N BRER
M ER BB - TREREME®E
Yo 25 B 5% Y AN 5 (B8 B 1 AR BB 4 D EE A
DEEBaRRREEN(HER)  £%
HEASEERNERNBEELAEMT
& AR ELERF o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bt 75 3 3R B 5 (48

31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Illustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs does not have any
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sales and
Leaseback?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'-®

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”}*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”}

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
¢ As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the

2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020
Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

® An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of HKFRS 17

23 EEMEERERNERMBR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bt 75 3 3R B 5 (48

31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, the Group considers that these
new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in
accounting policies but are unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

DFEEE (&)

NPERMBERRAEXREZMEER
ERABEDERE AT EFEERMS
BEARZ&REBABEBZUTAFEE

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the £ SR

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in F—H — HREREEFXEER
active markets for identical assets or E R T I5 2 B (R
liabilities FHEE)

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which F2H — ERELAFEFEME
the lowest level input that is significant to BERAZABR(EE
the fair value measurement is observable, ) &K [E & A
either directly or indirectly B2 EERE

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which E=K — HERHEATEFEMS
the lowest level input that is significant BERZTAIBEER
to the fair value measurement is B A BUR 2 (ME7 A

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

EREEUEEENMBRRERZEE
RAEEME  AEEEBARTREHR
EFFAEO B (ERY R EAEREM
EEBEAZKEERARE) EEEEH
ETRERER
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’'s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or

FETRMEERE(K)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

24 FESHERYE (&)

W% BERRERTE

WE  BERRBERABRRATER
TREBEIIE - WX - BEERE
HERABREEEREEEEZEZE
R EAERE Mg EE 2 ERE
BB -

ME - BELERBRBRAEFRESE
RN WEERREER  —RRELE
HIR RS HIER o T B HERIRE
IZRERAXREERAETENMER
BEERA - MATHKHERYE  HER
RENERRD - MAKERZETHD
ERSEAFEERFHNENEE
Win& B ERFHFTE -

FENERERBEYE  BEERE
B 2 fhETHE R F HIMEE AN E R R E
BFE - BULMERAZ EZFXRMT ¢

Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment
Plant and machinery
Equipment for rental purpose
Motor vehicles

20% to 33'/5%

20% to 33':%
20%
33'/3%

BF 5%
HEMFEEE HHEERE20%
A SES

BRih - HER 20% to 33'/:%
WARZME

@%&*&*m 20% to 33'/3%

FB{EME 2 &1 20%

B 33':%
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POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Computer software and intellectual property
license

Purchased computer software and acquired intellectual
property license are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:BREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Several warehouses, system
integration and service centres,

1 to 5 years

HE

AEBESNFBRFHEHORE RE
EABEEHE - WEOE TR —BERE
PIE 1 2 5B & ZE (6 A B9 R R LA SR R
B AZAHNAHExEEHE -

REBEEREBEA

AEEEMEHERBE —HERMTE
HE RHHEREEEREEMRER
Sho AEEERBNINEEHEER
BEMAKRAREEEAENERREE -

(a) REFAEEE

EREEEEHEER KB (BNERE
BEFMHER ) ®ER - A%
BERKABEERREITERE
MREBERRNSEETHE X
RIFEE A ENEREMNTEET
HE - FRAREENKABREERE
ANHERBEESH  AEENIS
BEMAARER AR B2 A<
9B SRR E M B B (R A
EEE - ERREERMEEHRME
ENEHERFHPNREERE
ROBRTIRITE -

ETRE  ZG¥Eae —FEZ0F
K BR# L K

office properties and car parking i YNELYIE YN
spaces (collectively the =X
“Properties”) (#ets [2Em=1)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 =ES:BXRBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FES:tBERBE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (Continued)

(c)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of |lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:BREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade and bills
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

BRERRTE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:BREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:BREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 1 year past due. The Group
has rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of
default based on reasonable and supportable
information, including the Group’s credit risk control
practices and the historical recovery rate of financial
assets over 90 days past due. However, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B iR R M T (48)

24 FESHHEREE (&)

TREERE ()
IR (P73

HRTBEIERBEKD W E 5 - KK
HEREERE  IASEXRAERER
Zit TERBABMEXNDNTERE
B AEBRBEEEETRBEES
BEETE - REBLTE  ARETE
EREERRNE(L MERSTRSEAR
M2 MBREEBERIERREE -
AEEERBEELEEBREREY
BaRE - WREBEESARRERER
FERRTRE MR =RIEHFEE

TREE

BRERARE

TRIBERERERR D RREMNFIE -

ESRABEREAFERR M
N FIRM S AR EREE R B

AEENTREERREZRNFEAR
AAARBENREREERNESREA

&
HHE

CREBENREAEBEIANESE &
FIanT



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bt 3 3R B = (48

31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:BREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued) cRasE(E)
Subsequent measurement (Continued) #ETE (|)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEBEE AT ENEHE E

After initial recognition, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the special
identification basis and, in the case of semi-finished
products and finished products, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:BREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:BREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Government grants
related to income are presented as other income in
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:BREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a) Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the products.

(b) Provision of maintenance services

Revenue from the provision of maintenance
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Equipment rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or the a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Wz 75 ()
REFFEHHWKE ()

(a) Em#EE

EmidEM SR anEERGEE
BTEPZERH(—RRRXME

anfs ) BERR ©

(b) EHREEIRE

PR B IR TS P S M s X R &1 HAA
NEREREEER - TAREFPF
RS M FRARERMA S o

R B H th 2R B9 K 2

REHEEWRAREE AR E R L fI g
R o NEURKIE B A R ma] 2 E
FEHEAN ST HIR R ERERSUWA -

Hp A

MEBWAZEFEERAG SR T AR
8 HAF HA sk S A2 HAE (fis i8R ) RO (&R
KRS WA IRE & BB EREF
ERLEER - LERFZET AR

BNEE

EAKEEREEE KRB - £
FEPEMNRIRENH (REE) K i
REMNAE - ANABERAKERETA
HIBs e a7 S W s (N BB R2 AR RE 7 on ARFS
MIEHIETER) o

HEERERAT /2022 F3f

117



31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Finance costs

Finance costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:BREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss is translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of certain subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease
term of contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate the lease (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the
lease term for leases of the Properties due to the
significance of these assets to its operations. These
leases have a short non-cancellable period (i.e., one to
five years) and there will be a significant negative effect
on production if a replacement is not readily available.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends from subsidiaries according to the relevant
tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing
of the payment of the dividends. Management
considered that it is not probable that the Group's
subsidiaries in Mainland China will distribute retained
profits in the foreseeable future, and accordingly no
provision for withholding tax was made. Where the
final outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally rewarded, the difference will impact
the deferred tax provision in the period in which the
difference arises.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for certain
deductible temporary differences and unpaid expenses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 23 to the financial
statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and
bills receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about the risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of the reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and bills receivables and the expected
credit loss allowance in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. Further details of the trade
and bills receivables are given in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing
rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such
as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).

EXREFHE R A (&)

fRET R HE M (8)

BEZRWARERERRBEREMGEEER
BiE

AEERBEEODRAREBHBEEXNRE
RAT IR IE W R IR R AR - AR EREDL %
FHRELERREFEN R ABIRET
EH - U IRIBAR B A B E RS
REHRERARNE IR ATRE GRS

WIRAE BN R - MBREERK
TEEIRUFANEERIEARIER
EEERBERZGEEDH[M 2 ER
B - BERABSREFEREBRZRZE
Z A BER MR E7

HE — HEEEERAR

AEEEZEFEEHERNSHNE
At - AEEEREEERFE(T1BR])
KEEHEERE - IBRILZEAEEAER
PR ARBELER - RESEERAL
RERIRTEREFEREEERUERE
MEEMUTNESMBAIMNHF
o Fit - BRREAEE [#§E
ER] BEXRBUBENNERMID - K
EITRERX ZHHBAR) KHZFAEA
[ MR B RO 15K R R B (PlanE &
FELAM B AR INREE K IER) - TE
mE - AREERTEREHABUER (I
mHEHNE) (HAIA)EHEIBR WARE
ETETERBENGE (HIMKHEAR
WBIEEFR)
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31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
made based on the estimated net realisable value of
the inventories. The assessment of the provision
required involves management judgement and
estimates on market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of inventories and the write-
down and reversal of write-down of inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
Further details are given in note 16 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
thermal imaging products and services, self-stabilised
imaging products and services and general aviation
products and services. Information reported to the
Group's chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, focuses on the operating results of the
Group as a whole as the Group's resources are
integrated and no discrete operating segment
information is available. Accordingly, no operating
segment information is presented.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

i EE R

(a)

RESPBEF B

2022 2021
—E-—F T = —&E
HK$’000 HK$'000

FE&xT FHIT

Mainland China R B A 3 206,465 233,145
Hong Kong and Macau YS! 34,481 42,769
Overseas Rl 4,666 3,457
245,612 279,371

The revenue information above is based on the

bt E E R TRBE R P AR

locations of the customers. o

Non-current assets (b) EARBEE
2022 2021
=== —E - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
Mainland China == N laNpe) 7,080 7,425
Hong Kong B 10,808 6,811
17,888 14,236

The non-current assets information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
deferred tax assets.

B SERBEEE R IRBEEER
EHiEL - TEBEEHRBAEE -
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31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHEIEFR(F)
(Continued)
Information about major customers FEREFER
Revenue derived from sales to individual customer REBEZE—_ZE-_—_FR-_F-_—F+_A
which contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the = +—HLEFE BEAEEBKZH
Group during the years ended 31 December 2022 and B10% 2 EAR P HEMERENT

2021 is as follows:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Customer A ZEA 49,111 N/ATEMA *
& The corresponding revenue from this customer is not disclosed as the * ARKRER S SR EB G AEERE 10%
revenue individually did not account for 10% or more of the Group's HLAE - REZEZFPHAEBKRETTIRE -

revenue for the respective period.
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B RS R M aE (48D

31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5.

Was - EAUA R s

NET
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is Wz~ A RN FEL T -
as follows:
Revenue ez
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Thermal imaging products and services ZEk & 2= 5 & IR 75
— Sales of goods Note @ — fHEE e 67,231 102,357
— Rendering of maintenance — REAEEIRE KX
services and equipment AR EHEE)
rental Note (Bl 9,276 12,225
76,507 114,582
Self-stabilised imaging products and B2 E K& E m MRS
services
— Sales of goods Nete & — fHEE e 31,880 34,505
— Rendering of maintenance — REEERE K
services and equipment 0 TR EWEE)
rental Note (&) 19,066 14,525
50,946 49,030
General aviation products and services @R fin 2= & & R %
— Sales of goods Nete & — e EMEw 116,274 113,832
— Rendering of maintenance — RS AR S E
services Net ®) 1,167 1,678
117,441 115,510
Others HAth 718 249
Total Bzt 245,612 279,371

Note 4 The revenue from the sale of goods was recognised at a point in time.

Note (B):

The revenue from the rendering of maintenance services and

equipment rental was recognised over time, which included operating
lease income of HK$612,000 (2021: HK$2,256,000) for the year ended

31 December 2022.

FiFiE (A)

SHES & M UES TH A RS R 2L ERR o
M@ 24 41 AR 7 K 5% 18 FE B U 5 T B B T R
R HeERE-_ZT-_—_#+-A=+—H
IEFEMNLCEREWRA612,000E (=
——% :2,256,000/87T) °
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31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
NET (Continued)

Performance obligations

The performance obligation for the sales of goods is
satisfied upon delivery of the goods and the
performance obligation for the rendering of
maintenance services and equipment rental is satisfied
over time as services are rendered.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

5.

Wz - WA R EFE (')

BHEE

HEEMNBOEERINEYRE T
BT MR EEREMREHED
B # B AT RIS 2 12 (1 AR 7% T BB B ) 72
METTMETT °

KT _A=+—BoEEXNHKENEE
(REZRBETHE D RETHET)
RHEBRIT

2022 2021

—=E—= —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET THBT

Amounts expected to be recognised FEHAW MR ARS8 -

as revenue:

Within one year —F R 7,235 8,313

After one year — &% 11,176 13,799

18,411 22,112

For contracts of the sale of goods with original
expected duration of less than one year, the Group has
elected not to disclose information about the remaining
performance obligations. All considerations from
contracts with customers with original expected
duration of not less than one year have been included
in the transaction prices and, therefore, were included
in the information disclosed in the above table.
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B RS R M aE (48D

31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5.
NET (Continued)

Wz - HAW ARz FE (&)

Other income and gains, net HA g A R Wz F R
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Bank interest income RITH BUYLA 345 170
Recovery of written-off trade g B B #fi 5 & 5 & W GRIE
receivables - 1
Government grants* BT Bh * 885 336
Foreign exchange differences, net M =B - 2,524
Reversal of doubtful receivables, net [l zkIA R i5 B G5 48 502 =
Others Hih 570 37
2,302 3,068
o Government grants mainly represented subsidies obtained from local * BT 4 Bh = Z 45 B b 75 BUF B8P BRAS B9

government authorities. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants.

B o %S BRI AR G SR AR IR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

6.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

BRBiAT (E18), BRI

AEBEOBRTA(BE),OEF &N

B (GEA) AT S IREEE -

the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

** The foreign exchange differences, net is included in “Other expenses”

* %

(2021: “Other income and gains, net”) in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022 2021
—ZE__ —=EF -
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
=g FET T 7T
Cost of inventories sold DEFERA 160,085 186,218
Cost of services provided IRERFBA A 12,798 10,802
Depreciation of property, W R RERETE
plant and equipment 13 2,382 3,158
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FREESEITE 14(a) 6,939 5,938
Amortisation of intangible assets & E sy 15 523 553
Research and development costs &2 7 8,732 6,183
(Reversal of)/provision for FEU R TE R BE (Bsm)
doubtful receivables, net B R (502) 1,009
Recovery of written-off trade W el 2 i85 B 2 FE W kIR
receivables 5 - (1)
Written-off of trade receivables EMEHE 5 ek EE 17 3,413 2,053
(Reversal of)/provision for BREFE (BR), i
inventory obsolescence, net FEE 16 (405) 347
Lease payments not included in ~ Tst ATREBEHER
the measurement of lease HERK
liabilities 14(c) 96 -
Employee benefit expense RERFMAXZ
(excluding directors’ and (TBEEEK
chief executive officer’s 17 ER AR 537
remuneration (note 8)): (FFEES)) -
Wages and salaries TEERE® 41,117 37,927
Pension scheme contributions RINEFT B
(defined contribution (EEEMRETE) *
scheme)* 6,177 6,005
47,294 43,932
Auditor’'s remuneration 1% 5 il 357 B 1,280 1,300
Foreign exchange differences, ME 5, 2 R SRR <X
net** 10,470 (2,524)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BE X
property, plant and equipment R EIEE Ea = 581
Bank interest income RITHI BUA 5 (345) (170)
2 There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as * BMEESKERAIEAEE (EAREEX) AR

HURER B K F ©

R ERFREF AR R RE 2 mE K
KA [HEMAS] (ZF=—F : [HthA
N FER ) o
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BIBERA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: M ADITAT -
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGERE 525 488
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8. ESBRTBAXRTM

OFFICER'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive officer's remuneration
for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

REZEEHAXZMERAE(E
P EMRESF EmRR( LKA
A 7B R AHE B 383(1)(@) ~ (b) * () K(f)
RAR AR (WBEEEMmER) R PIE
2R FE AO F N EE I M 7T AR B FT B AN

T

hh 2

g 2

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&T T

Fees we 378 375
Salaries, allowances and e R REYMER

benefits in kind 5,977 5379

Performance related bonuses FIRMRREEAT 820 780

Pension scheme contributions BRIRESETEIH R 18 24

7,193 6,558
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Bt 75 3 3R B 5 (48

31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8 ESBSRTHARTM(E)
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FRMBLIERITEET TR
directors during the year were as follows: o
2022 2021

—E-—F —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT
Mr. NIU Zhongjie HeEE A 126 125
Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen SR 126 125
Mr. HOU Min EIRSE 126 125
378 375
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAMEEMENBEIIENTES
independent non-executive directors during the e (ZE=—F: &) -

year (2021: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8. EERITHAREM(E)
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) BITESBRITHAR
officer
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
2022 in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
& 2RK KEHH Bike
k- et -3 ENRER A TR 40 Pk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET TET T#Ex
. _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching GiRiafiE 2,326 320 - 2,646
Ms. WONG Kwan Lik* FEOLL* 2,227 300 - 2,527
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai BIRELE 1,424 200 18 1,642
5,977 820 18 6,815
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
2021 in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
He 2R FHEH Rl
T EEH 4L I ez
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHx Fhx BT AT
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching HmtafkE 2,134 310 - 2,444
Ms. WONG Kwan Lik* FRNLL* 1,987 286 6 2,279
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai BIRELE 1,258 184 18 1,460
5,379 780 24 6,183
* Ms. WONG Kwan Lik is also the chief executive officer of the * FRETRRAR AT,
Company.
There was no arrangement under which a director REN BEEHEZHEXRE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration MEERFM ZH(ZT_—5F:
during the year (2021: Nil). ).
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the RER  NEBEWERES S F5H
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or BE R IN AR S B N AR K B 1%
upon joining the Group or as compensation for WERBISERBBENEE(ZE
loss of office (2021: Nil). TF ) e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B R AR M aE (4D

31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three directors (2021: three directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining two (2021: two) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive officer of the Company are as follows:

FEEREHES

FANDEERFREEE=-RES=(Z
T_—F:=Z2EBF) HFMFRER
MEHERMES FAKTMA(ZT
—F  MRA)WFARREFTHITRA
BHERSHEBNFMFBET

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFETT

Salaries, allowances and e EAREYWER
benefits in kind 2,253 2,282
Performance related bonuses i‘éiﬁjﬁﬁ TEAT 270 792
Pension scheme contributions RIS EI T 21 36
2,544 3,110

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
officer highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

SIAATHMARI W IFESR RIFRSIT
BABZE=RHFEEHENT

Number of employees

EE#A
2022 2021
—=E—= —E—F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7 = 1,500,000 78 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T £ 2,000,000 7T = 1
2 2
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10. INCOME TAX 10. FriSHi

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in
which subsidiaries of the Group are domiciled and
operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands, the Company is not subject to any
income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group, which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2021:HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5% (2021:16.5%).

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the
respective regulations, corporate income tax has been
provided at the rate of 256% (2021: 25%) on the taxable
income of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
during the year, except for certain subsidiaries of the
Group, which are qualified small and micro-sized
enterprises under preferential tax treatment. Pursuant
to the preferential tax policy, the first RMB1,000,000 of
taxable income and the remaining part within
RMB1,000,000 to RMB3,000,000 shall be calculated at
12.5% and 25% (2021: 12.5% and 50%) of taxable
income respectively, with a reduced tax rate of 20%.

AEEBAREREERAEEZHBER
BIREMAR R EMAERDEERE LK
KEZMHEMBAAFER - RIEBEFRES
BEERIRA - NRRBAGHEM
PRS®L

ERFRRETBATE S Z Gat ERE
S AIR165% (ZFE - —4F :165%) 2
REERBABFESREE  BRAEEK
—ERB ARSI - :ZH B A B AR AR
FISHBMEFNETHNEERELR - 2K
BARAE 20000008 T(—F=——4F :
2,000,000 7% 7T ) ) & 2R Bt s A Bl &= &
825% (=F = —4F :8.256%) ' 8 N
JERBRMIE R 5165% (ZT = —4F :
16.5%) °

BIEF B ATSBE RARBAG - AT
SR E R F ARLTE S B A& & 8 M B
NEIERFEUW AIR26% (Z = —4F :
25%) 2 B ERVEL B - BRAEEME T
MEBARIN  ZEWBARARIEER
BERTHEERDNRMFIDE - RER
BEEREK ERHRERANEARE
1,000,000 7T LA &2 A R # 1,000,000 7T &
AR #& 3,000,000 7T 5 E R A £: T 3015 &
D RIEFERFUAR12.5% K 25% (—F
——%F :125% N50%) 5t E KR AR
EA20% °
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

10. FRE% (&)

2022 2021
—E-F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET
Current BNEA 2,396 4,447
Deferred (note 23) PEFE (P 5E23) (4,055) (1,276)
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year FRFIE (%) X HiE%E (1,659) 3,171

A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable to
(loss)/profit before tax at the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax (credit)/expense
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the
effective tax rates, are as follows:

BARA RE R B A R AL
PR RLERE R R ER R ERTLAT (B
18),/8dz EATIE(ER), P BE
EREBEFEIREGER) X2
R URERBRE(BDEERR) BB
R ZHERNT

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TEx THT
(Loss)/profit before tax BEAT (BB)wh (5,267) 19,911
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.56%  REEHE16.5% st E 2 1A (869) 16.5 3,285 16.5
Effect on different taxation rate in AR B R R R [E 7 52
Mainland China (1,174) 22.3 151 0.8
Lower tax rates enacted by local tax M B S R R B R i &
authorities (309) 5.9 (1,197) (6.0)
Income not subject to tax BEFHUA (150) 2.8 (113) (0.6)
Expenses not deductible for tax REMNF L H 843 (16.0) 1,075 54
Tax concession MBHE - - (30) (0.2)
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year FERFHEER)/ T HEE (1,659) 315 3,171 15.9
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11.

12.

DIVIDENDS 1. BRE
2022 2021
—E-F e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Proposed final — HK1.35 cents BAH — BREER1.35811

(2021: HK1.35 cents) per —E=—F 1 1.35/8()

ordinary share 5,400 5,400

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’'s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
amounts is based on the (loss)/profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
400,000,000 (2021: 400,000,000) in issue during the
year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

12.

REFZFZRBBEAFTARABRR
FEEBBEREHAER - TAEE -

BRAREERSRAARGER
(&518) &R

BRERN(ER) BAIDERGAAE
BEIFAEABGER(SE) S5 &
& A B 2 17400,000,000% (=T = —
£ : 400,000,000 %) & 3B A% A Nt 35
AR EETE -

oA+ BULFEIEEBETOE
FEBEEER -
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12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share are based on:

12. BAFAERESERAARLER
(B8), B (#)

SREFREE (BR),/ BAITIERIA
THEAHH :

(Loss)/earnings 2022 2021
(&518), B F —B--F CZE-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary s+ E &R E R & #5E (FiE) /2 A
equity holders of the parent, FTRM AR T AR
used in the basic and diluted BB ARG (EE), &R
(loss)/earnings per share
calculations (3,195) 16,982
Shares Number of shares
Bz 15 IR &E
2022 2021
—E-= —E - —F
‘000 ‘000
TR TH&
Weighted average number of STEEREAREE (BE),EF
ordinary shares used in the basic FIr A3 A 3 38 A N e
and diluted (loss)/earnings SEH RS ER
per share calculations 400,000 400,000
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bt 3 3R B = (48

31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERZE
Furniture,
fixtures Equipment
Leasehold  andoffice  Plantand for rental Motor
Buildings improvements equipment  machinery purpose vehicles Total
HE KB #ER R
B3 NEEE BLERE  BEREE  BERE hat: @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TR TiEn TiEn TR
e
31 December 2022 —E--E+-fA=+-H
Cost: FRA :
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—F-f—H 6,438 2,707 2,615 3,935 8,191 1,591 25,477
Additions HE 2,000 213 61 60 - - 2,394
Disposal it - - - - - (285) (285)
Exchange realignment EXAE (493) (107) (131) (304) (628) (20) (1,683)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-—&+-fA=t-H 7,945 2,873 2,545 3,691 1,563 1,286 25,903
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHE:
At 1 January 2022 R-E_-%#-f-H 2,897 1518 2,203 3,512 6,721 548 17,399
Provided during the year EREE 313 502 202 181 806 378 2,382
Disposal e - - - - - (285) (285)
Exchange realignment ERAE (231) (100) (116) (275) (540) (19) (1,281)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-—F+-fA=t-H 2,979 1,920 2,289 3418 6,987 622 18,215
Net book value: REFE -
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-—F+-fA=t-H 4,966 953 256 273 576 664 7,688
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Bt 75 3 3R B 5 (48

31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥%¥ - BERZE (&)
(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures Equipment
Leasehold  and office Plant and for rental Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  machinery purpose vehicles Total
HE KE ZER FfE
BF NEEE  BOERXE  HRREN  HERE RE )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR ThL ThL TR ThL ThL

31 December 2021 —E--E+-fA=t-A
Cost: A
At 1 January 2021 RZT=-5-F-A 6,238 1,585 2,359 3592 8,920 543 23,237
Additions RE - 1,078 216 253 - 1,039 2,586
Disposal LE = - (11) (30) (997) - (1,038)
Exchange realignment ERAZ 200 44 51 120 268 9 692
At 31 December 2021 N_E_—F+-A=1-H 6,438 2,107 2,615 3,935 8191 1,591 25477
Accumulated depreciation: Z:TE:
At 1 January 2021 W_E_—F-F—-H 24% 1,195 1,679 3,146 5334 a7 14,226
Provided during the year EREh 316 324 494 290 1610 124 3,158
Disposal e = = (11) (30) (416) = (457)
Exchange realignment 5% A% 86 39 7 106 193 7 472
At 31 December 2021 R=E-—%+-A=1-H 2,897 1518 2,203 3512 6,721 548 17,399
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—%+-A=1-H 3,541 1,189 412 423 1470 1,043 8,078
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B TS SRR B 5E ()

31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

14. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for the Properties with
lease terms of 1 to 5 years. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

14. HE

REBEREBA

rEEREEZSVWENHEAY  HE
HIRB1E6F - — KM= AKETF
EREENINEEREHEEERE -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) ERAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use FRAREEFEAEEENRAMBER
assets and the movements during the year are as FHIERAT -
follows:
Properties
ZEYE
HK$'000
FH&T
As at 1 January 2021 R-ZTE-_—F—HF—H 6,902
Additions NE 4,089
Depreciation charge WES (5,938)
Modification (EH (41)
Exchange realignment FE H, % 58
As at 31 December 2021 and RZEBE_—FE+-_A=1+—HBxK
1 January 2022 —E-__F—HF—H 5,070
Additions NE 11,402
Depreciation charge WEE (6,939)
Modification 1E5T (67)
Exchange realignment PE 5, 8% (149)
As at 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H 9,317

B ERBRAR /2022 F 8,
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B R AR M aE (4D

31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

14. LEASES (Continued) 14.

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

HE (&)
FEEEREBEA (H)
(b) HESME

ENEEEEHEDEREHER
W -

2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FH&T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BMEAE 5,514 7,536
New leases EE 11,402 4,089
Accretion of interest recognised F TR A FILEIE AN
during the year 525 488
Modification &3] (67) (41)
Payments (NES (7,696) (6,617)
Exchange realignment bE H R (154) 59
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HBHEHEE 9,524 5,514
Analysed into: IR
Current portion BIHAES 5 5,142 4,166
Non-current portion FERNERE 4,382 1,348

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bt 3 3R B = (48

31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

14. LEASES (Continued) 14. 1HE ()

The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBERABEA (M)
(¢) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (c) EEZFPHEREBEEFHENSEN
to leases are as follows: K
2022 2021
—=E_— = = —fE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEFE 525 488
Depreciation charge of right-of-use {(fA#EEETEE
assets 6,939 5,938
Expense relating to short-term BARBEENRAX
leases 96 -
Total amount recognised in EETPRERRNARE
profit or loss 7,560 6,426

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 26 (c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

(d) MEHRSITHAREN FHREM

FE26(c) P HEER -

AEEERHEA

The Group leases its equipment (note 13) consisting of
five (2021: five) equipment for rental purpose under
operating lease arrangements. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$612,000 (2021: HK$2,256,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

AEBREBECLHSTEEHBERME (B
T13)  EHpiEERERBM AR (=
TZ—F : A)&kE AEERFARE
RS WAB12,0008 L (=T = —4F:
2,256,000 7T ) + 515 8 R B 75 3 3% M
FE5 °

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
are as follows:

RZE_—_F+-_A=+—H  A5H
R AR T AT B AS & F B A R SR A A1 A
FrRWHAMBEERZTWDT -

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

Within one year —F R - 127

B ERBRAR /2022 F 8,
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St 7S 3R AR B 5 (48D
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. BLEE

Intellectual
Computer property
software license Total
HI5E
B4 EfESTH #st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET F&E T
31 December 2022 —E-CF
+=A=t+—H
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of R=—ZT=—
accumulated amortisation —H— B/
PR 25T 315 773 1,088
Additions NE 342 - 342
Amortisation provided FE R
during the year (343) (180) (523)
Exchange realignment b 5 (24) - (24)
At 31 December 2022 RZE__F
+=—HA=+—H 290 593 883
At 31 December 2022: R-ZT——
+=ZA=+—8:
Cost AR 1,544 900 2,444
Accumulated amortisation Bt (1,254) (307) (1,561)
Net carrying amount SRR E 290 593 883
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

16.

15. B EE (&)

Intellectual
Computer property
software license Total
IG5
BB EERERTA] 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHTT
31 December 2021 —E-—F
+t=A=t+-—-R
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of RZ—ZT—=—4
accumulated amortisation —A—HBIKA
B 25T 726 - 726
Additions NE - 900 900
Amortisation provided O R S A
during the year (426) (127) (553)
Exchange realignment bE H AR 15 - 15
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE——F
+=—HA=+—H 815 773 1,088
At 31 December 2021: R —&F
+=ZA=+—8:
Cost %N 1,312 900 2,212
Accumulated amortisation RS (997) (127) (1,124)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 815 773 1,088
INVENTORIES 16. 55
2022 2021
—E=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Components and consumables B ROBFE MR 762 1,386
Semi-finished products e 7,565 13,5689
Finished products RUEY T 46,790 55,927
55,117 70,902
Less: Provision B B (2,179) (2,651)
52,938 68,251

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the reversal
of inventory obsolescence, net recognised at cost of
sales amounted to HK$405,000 (2021: the provision for
inventory obsolescence, net recognised at cost of sales
amounted to HK$347,000).

HE—_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HLIHF
£ BRIEERAERNREFZ SRR F
R /405,000 T (22 = —F : 1RIHE
PR S FERRHY PR & 17 & 45 F B 5 347,000
I °
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31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 17. ESRUFERERERE

2022 2021
—E-F —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FTER FAT
Trade receivables 2 5 e RIE 66,125 98,108
Bills receivable e =S 11,245 5,198
77,370 103,306
Impairment NERIE] (2,272) (2,786)
75,098 100,520
The Group's trading terms with its customers are AEEREFHNEBESBRAEEREE -
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where PRI TP —RABEN
payment in advance is normally required. The credit Ko EEHBRER—Z=HH BEF
period is generally one to three months. Each customer PHZREREEERE AKBRERE
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to THIEREEEKFNIE  TRBEEEE
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables THRAREREEERR - &K
and has a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. HEREEABTHR - BRI
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior EREWRBE AT E -
management. Trade and bills receivables are non-
interest-bearing.
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as R EHRIZEZ BRI THE S EIK
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice RIE R EWE BRI AR AT 2R T (FOBR &S
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: B
2022 2021
—E-= =B —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Less than 3 months DR =1E A 27,093 56,982
3 to 6 months =E~EAR 2,183 3,787
6 to 12 months ANE+ @A 3,056 8,455
Over 1 year —EPE 42,766 31,296
75,098 100,520
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31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 17.

(Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of trade and bills receivables are as follows:

EZRERERERERE (&)

5 8 R T M R 0 40 L (L 1R
BOEBERNT -

2022 2021
=0 IS =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At beginning of year REH] 2,786 1,770
Provision for doubtful receivables, net f&EUiZRIEREEE S

FER 2,911 3,062

Amount written-off as uncollectible 24 EUk o458
(note 6) (Pffi3E6) (3,413) (2,053)
Exchange realignment PE 5, 3% (12) 7
At end of year RER 2,272 2,786

An impairment analysis of trade and bills receivables is
performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade and bills
receivables are written off if past due for more than
three years and are not subject to enforcement activity.

R B DR R R T E 5
P M 30RO R MR AT BB
ST EEE - REEDERRES
BUBEERNSBES S BRITHH
BB BB E - ZHERBR AR
IR - AR E RN IR B BT 1S
BB REIBE I - B AT R R R
BHEANARRAKER - —BA
= R A = 4 B B 3 B
TED BB 5 REYHOE R R
F oA 3 -
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B R AR M aE (4D

31 December 2022 —ZFE = —#+1+—-H=+—H

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's trade and bills receivables

using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

17. EZRWHEARERRE (&)

AT ATEERARBERENES
B M 50R F AE RA £ R e 1
B

R-EBE-_—_F+=-A=+—H

Past due  Past due
more than more than
Past due 1yearbut 2yearsbut Pastdue
within within within over
Current 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
il —5{ WEE  RfEBs
NE SR-F SRME  PREF =F @t
ECLs rate TE,HMEEEEE$ 0%-0.5% 3.1% 6.8% 33.3% 100.0% 0%-3.4%
Gross carrying amount ERAE(THT)

(HK$'000) 63,018 6,624 4,479 2,616 633 71,370
ECLs (HK$'000) BEEEBE(THETL) 258 205 305 87 633 2,272
As at 31 December 2021 R-EB-——%+=-H=+—H

Pastdue  Pastdue
more than ~ more than
Pastdue 1yearbut 2yearsbut  Pastdue
within within within over
Current 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
ekt —4@ WEE  AHEA
HE PR—F PRME PR=E =f @5t
. ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
ECLs rate BHEEBER 0%-0.8% 5.4% 15.2% 52.7% 100.0%  0%-2.8%
Gross carrying amount FEAE(TAT)

(HK$'000) 83,922 13,114 5,641 81 548 103,306

ECLs (HK$'000) HHEEEE(TATL) 630 708 857 43 548 2,786
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18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

19.

18. ANMIE - BERHMEKRFIER

RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Prepayments TR RIE 15,493 16,449
Deposits and other receivables B4 I H b fE Y k8 6,490 5,625
21,983 22,074

The above balances are unsecured and interest-free.

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there were no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

biigsnaEEMARE

TR ENEMEERTESE
EHRENaHSBENEKREGR -
RZEBE_—_FR_FT-_—F+=A
=+—8 EEBEEETEHEARIK -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERKREEEY
2022 2021
—E==-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Cash and bank balances B4 NRITLE, 199,969 220,180
Time deposits TE HATF K 44,629 3,783
244,598 223,963

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$81,463,000 (2021: HK$46,747,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

RIFEBRR - AEBUARBEZE
& MR 1T A 8 581,463,000 T (=&
——%F : 46,747,000 7T) o AREAT]
ERZBEMER - A RIBCPEA
REMBINEE BIGHD R(EE - EE
FRAEEEMRE)  NEB S BRERE
HEITINE SRR ITIE AR H IR H
HE -

HEERERAT /2022 F3f

149



150

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bt 75 3 3R B 5 (48

31

December 2022 —E - —#F+_H=+—H

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

20. TRADE PAYABLES

21.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

19. RERRSEEY (A)

RITRESBEBETHRITERRIZFEHF
EREBAE - EHERFERREENTE
HATE AR R BRI B o RITAE SR TF DR
AT BRI 8 A RO ER RO AT SEERTT ©

20. ESENRIE

RBEMRIREZBIINTNE S RN
HRIBMRREDITIAT

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFETT

Within 1 month PR—EA 6,894 18,471
1 to 3 months —Z==1@A 1,005 368
Over 3 months =@EAMNE 12,860 8,252
20,759 27,091

The trade payables are interest-free and are normally
settled ranging from 30 to 90 days.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

B EMNFRIBN BB EAENER30
£90H °

21. HitEARERETER

2022 2021

—=E—= —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T T

Other payables H fth fE < 5008 7,239 6,062
Accruals et E R 10,011 8,819
17,250 14,881

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within one year.
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31 December 2022 —ZF = —#+1+—-HA=+—H

22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22.

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
advance payments made by customers while the
underlying goods or services are yet to be provided.

Changes in the contract liabilities during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

BHAE

AEENENEBEEIZRNELBMNRK
T8 > MARREEE fn S ARFS R AR IR -

REBEZE_E-_—_FR-_F_—F+_A
=+t HLEFENEHNEEESFIFHN
T

2022 2021
—E-= =4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At beginning of year AEH] 14,754 15,108
Revenue recognised that was REATAGNAELER
included in the contract liabilities BRI E
balance at beginning of year (13,975) (13,526)
Increases due to cash received, EE YR 2 mEm - TEER
excluding amounts recognised as FAE R AR EEH R EE
revenue during the year 14,681 13,172
At end of year RE R 15,460 14,754

HEERERAT /2022 F3f

151



152

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B R AR M aE (4D
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23. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

23. EEHIE

EEHEER

EEFRBEREERNFANZEZMT

Depreciation
allowance in

excess of
related
depreciation
HBBERTEZ
TERE
HK$’'000
FET
2022 —E-F
At 1 January 2022 RN-TBE-—F—H—H 119
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss SFAFERNER ZELERE (KizE10)
during the year (note 10) (43)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+-A=+—H 76

Depreciation
allowance in

excess of
related
depreciation
AT E 2
ERE
HK$'000
FAT
2021 —E——f
At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ——H—H =
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss Nk B FAEZE 2 BLERIA (FIEE10)
during the year (note 10) 119
At 31 December 2021 RZBEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 119
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23. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 23. EEBIE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEREEE
Provision for
inventories Losses
and trade available for
receivables offsetting
and against
Unpaid  written-off future
accrued of trade  Unrealised taxable
expenses  receivables profit profits Total
#ERES
ERTER T RIER S
AEM UAREMSH RRERH
Eitfy EREKZE  REREF  BAZEER at

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TR TER

2022 —E-C
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE--%#-f—-H - 1,374 2,068 - 3,442
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to (1B B) /3t AEREEZ

profit or loss during the year EIERA (f310)

(note 10) - (732) (430) 5,174 4,012
Exchange realignment B i A& - (45) - (135) (180)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—F+-F=1-H = 597 1,638 5,039 1,214
2021 —E--&

At 1 January 2021 RZBZ—4%-F—H 34 474 1,621 - 2,029
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to (3B 8) /I AERERZ

profit or loss during the year EIERE (F3E10)

(note 10) (35) 883 547 - 1,395
Exchange realignment [ 5 R 1 17 - - 18
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—4F+-A=1-8 - 1,374 2,068 - 3,442
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23. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

154

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% (or a lower rate if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors) withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group's earnings will be retained in
Mainland China, so it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2022, the
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China was
approximately HK$1,600,000 (2021: HK$4,562,000).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of tax losses of HK$30,080,000 (2021:
HK$28,128,000) as at 31 December 2022 as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.
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B iR R M T (48)

23. EEFIIE ()

ELEBRAEEE (&)

RBFBESERMAEHRE - AHSLAIN
BRECEBERAIEREESTIROK
BIRE10% (5B R EINI IR E &
BRI AR ARG HE - A HER
EOBRE) BN - ZREH_FTT/N\EF
—A—HEBEER WEAR_-FTTLF
T-A=+—HEREENEN - FA
SEARNPEAMKIZ ZERBR
ARE-—ZETTN\F-A—HEELZA
A7 Ik 2 BB B TRFR A o

R-E-_—F+_-_A=+—H K&£H
W AR B R E RS B AR TEIEL
Z KB AE 2 ARERBFENZ BN
BRELEHE ZEFRE AEEZA
MBREBAPE AN - WZEHBEAF
RA] TR AR R TAIgE D IRZERF -
R-TE-_—F+-_F=+—H EKRE
FERHE AR B AR = ZA5
4 51,600,000/ T( = T = — F:
4,562,000 7T) °

R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H W E5
5 I8 E518 30,080,000 BT (ZE = —4 :
28,128,000 % 7L ) MERRIEETL B & EE -
EXEEHBEEEZHBARE 2EE
—BRH YRATKAEEELERR
i m A AR S AT B R 2 TR BB 1R o
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24.

25.

SHARE CAPITAL 4. BRI
2022 2021
—=E_— -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT

Issued and fully paid: BETRER
400,000,000 (2021: 400,000,000) 400,000,000 & (=& = —4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 400,000,000 f%) B AREE

0.01 B LAY E AR 4,000 4,000

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

Other reserve

The balance represented the aggregate paid-in capital
of the subsidiaries acquired, offset by investment costs
in subsidiaries of the Company during the
reorganisation of the Company in connection with the
listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC
shall appropriate a certain percentage of their net profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses)
calculated under the accounting principles generally
applicable to the PRC enterprises to the reserve fund.
When the balance of this reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital. However, the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after
these usages. After making the appropriation to the
statutory surplus reserve, the Company's subsidiaries
may also appropriate their profits for the year to the
discretionary surplus reserve upon approval by the
board of directors or the shareholders in a general
meeting.

25. f#fE

AEERNAFERBEFE HELE
RABBNH B RE D 05 NS
%27 -

Hftuf#

ZAEMARFATUB I B 2 B8R A A2
B WARBRARRIRO KB £
METEAREARRAMBERARNIKRE
A

EEBSRHEE

RIET BEARRAR FOAR - K B
B R R BB R R AR BRI R AL A (R 35
TREFBERR)NETEI L EERHE
e RRBTIEEE-—REAS
RAGE - EZREEESERIEER
BAHE0% B - AIEEME MR EAHE
R < AT BRI EA BIFREES
BIRSIENER - AW - EEBRER
NGBV BRBNZERGRREARNE
1 25% o $ETE BBRREIELBRRE
ARABIMBARKREETSHRRIBE
RE LHAERTAIKEFRRFBEER
IREERFEME -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$11,402,000 (2021: HK$4,089,000) and
HK$11,402,000 (2021: HK$4,089,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
the Properties. During the year, the Group had no
(2021: HK$900,000) non-cash additions to
intangible assets in respect of intellectual property
license.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities:

RERERERME

(a) EEBHFREXS

FRN - AEBEGRZEMERELH
NERAEEERMERRBENIERS
A5 R A 11,402,000/ (==
— — £:4,089,0008 T ) &
11,402,000 o( = & = — & :
4,089,000/ 7T) - RER » ANEE
G AR E A R T A B B E R
JEIR & HN(=Z = —% : 900,000
BIT) °

(b) MEFBHELENEESD

2022 —E-—
Lease
liabilities
HEAE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2022 R-T—-_—F—H—H 5,514
New leases HEE 11,402
Lease modification HEEE] (67)
Foreign exchange movement HINFE At (154)
Interest expense FEF X 525

Interest expense classified as DERKER S MEN

operating cash flows A 2% (525)
Changes from financing cash flows BEIR S (7,171)
At 31 December 2022 RZEBE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H 9,524
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26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 26. EBRERERHT (F)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETBELNEEEE : (B
activities: (Continued)
2021 —E=—F
Lease
liabilities
HEBE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—HF—H 7,536
New leases HEE 4,089
Lease modification HEEET (41)
Foreign exchange movement SN 2 59
Interest expense FEFZ 488
Interest expense classified as DA B4 T B
operating cash flows B (488)
Changes from financing cash flows BMERESRE (6,129)
At 31 December 2021 R —F+_A=+—H 5,514
Total cash outflow for leases (c) HENRESRHAHE

(c)

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows is as

FeReREXRTREENHEERS
ML AR T

follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FATT
Within operating activities KT E[E N 621 488
Within financing activities BEESHEN 7,171 6,129
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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27. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 27. EEERKH
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not pledge any RZEBE_—_F+-HA=+—H X5H
assets (31 December 2021: Nil). WEEAERNEE(ZZE=_—F+=A
=+—H8:8&)-
28. COMMITMENTS 28. AfE
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any RZEZ—_F+_A=+—8H  x&H
significant commitments. 3 A fa] EAREHE o
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BBARS
(a) The Group had the following transactions (a) AEBRFRHERBESETN
with related parties during the year: %5 :
2022 2021
—E=-C —E - —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt aE FHT FET
Rental fee paid to directors RIEZSZNOHEE A (i) 209 864
Rental fee paid to a company E—RA T (KRATIME
of which two directors of BEEHHEERER)
the Company are NHEZR
controlling shareholders (if) 96 -
Acquisition of right-of-use Wi AR A E
assets (iii) 5,971 388
Notes: BREE -

(i) Certain subsidiaries in Mainland China rented commercial units
from one director of the Company as offices and the transactions
were conducted in accordance with the terms in the relevant
lease agreements. These are continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(ii) The transactions were conducted in accordance with the terms
in the relevant lease agreements. These are continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
(iii) The acquisition of right-of-use assets were conducted in
accordance with the terms in the relevant lease agreements.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the acquisition of
right-of-use assets amounting to HK$388,000 are connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the acquisition of right-of-use
assets amounting to HK$5,971,000 are continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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EFHEREEMERANER A
R 5 IR EARREE 9 ETETT
BRI EMARAE4AE - ZERFE

R 5 iR EAR A & 17 R FETT
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(i)

g RS EDRERBRE
BRET - RBEE=-ZE=_—F+=-A8
=t+—HALFE BRELWRAUE
14AE - Y BE F F # & 2 388,000 %8
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29.

30.

31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

Details of the compensation of key management
personnel of the Group, who are the directors, are
disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all financial assets
of the Group including trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents were
stated at amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all financial
liabilities of the Group including trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
lease liabilities were stated at amortised cost.

The Group's classification of its financial assets and
liabilities is explained in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, management has
assessed that the fair values of trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and lease liabilities
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's financial controller is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. At each
reporting date, the financial controller analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

29.

30.

31.

BB S X% (&)

(b) AEEMEFEEBEASZHMH

AEBTIREEARB(BRER)Z
HF BN SRR M T KEE -

BERES 2EMITA

RZEBEZ_FR_ZF-_—F+=A8
=t+—HB AEBfEERMEE B
E S EINRIA R EWEE - st ATBRR
H e MEMERFIENSFEE
NIR & MRS S EYIIRE AT R -

RZEBEZ_FR_ZF-_—F+=A8
=t+—HB AEBfEcRAE B
LS REMNFA - 5t AH A EA FOE K E
TEANeRaGERlEaFEYREE
FR AT BE

AEBHHESREERARD ENRERE
NP MARME24 -

ERMTANATFERAFERER

RZE_—_FER_ZFT_-_—F+_ A
=+—H EERELHHERE B
FEMERIE K R R % -« s ATE FIE -

RehEMEKRFENEREE Re
EReEEY BHREMNFE FFAH
ENFKBAREFERANEREERE
EREMNRTFEREEREERS  HE
EHNRETAREHREE -

AEBMBREAEBETERMTIAR
FEFEZERELRREF REREA
B BBEEs eI ABECE
REEMETAEANEZHABUR
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31.

32.

160

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by subsidiaries
in currencies other than the subsidiaries’ functional
currencies.

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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cREREERBERBE

AEEZIECRTAGERE RS
EEBY ZEZeMIAZIERENR
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. eRIAMEEBERECK (H)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the

end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change by 1% in the US$ exchange rate against RMB,

SMEE LB (4K)

TRETEZHEBEETEBERT -
BEPRAREBUNETAEZERMITA
PTEE £ 2 BR B A M) 3 =T 5L A R B [E

with all other variables held constant, of the Group's REPBELE 1% HBRE ¢
profit before tax arising from US$ denominated financial
instruments:
2022 2021
—=:=-= —EE e —E
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FATT
If US$ strengthens against RMB ELRARBHE (1,178) (924)
If US$ weakens against RMB ETAARERE 1,178 924

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

AEEBBTVEREXREH TR
EE Bzt

FERR

AEEERERTREEAENFE =T
ETEE AKRENBRRBMBEARR
EREERETERECEPHARIER
BRZER - WA ARERBESIERE
PRS- AAKEEGEERER T
PEK -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022

32. TRIEMEERERBE (&)

EEmE (&)
RERBRFERR

TRIFNERAEENEERENEER
BERkEaEERE  FEERNEAHE
B (BRIEEMER AT EEANETMBER
ARBHNBERTER)  RRZ=ZF==
FR_E-_—F+-_A=+—HWFLH
EEDIT - FIZPIMBHSHESHE
ELRIRMEE -

R-®==%+-A=+-8

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AEH
EEER HRAEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
E1ER 22RE F3RER Ent at
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
THT THT TR TR TR
Trade and bills receivables* 2o ENTAR ENER - - - 71370 71370
Financial assets included in HABRZE ke R
prepayments, deposits, and EtERFEN S REE
other receivables
— Normal** = 6,490 - - - 6,490
— Doubtful** — g ** - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents B RRESEN
— Not yet past due — AR 244,598 - - - 244,598
251,088 - - 77,370 328,458
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. cREKREEEERBUEKR (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERR (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BE R R EERER (FE)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2021 R-TB=-_—%+=-A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
120 AEH
REER SHESEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
F1ER F2ER FIBER BlenE b

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TAL TAL TAL TAL

Trade and bills receivables* BN ER RS * - - - 103,306 103,306
Financial assets included in SIARNGE e R
prepayments, deposits, and EtERFEN S REE
other receivables
— Normal** = [Eg 5,625 - - - 5,625
— Doubtful** — g+ - - = = =
Cash and cash equivalents B RRESEN
— Not yet past due — AR 223,963 - - - 223,963
229,588 = = 103,306 332,894
o For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified & RAEEERGRETENE S EKRRIEA
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is REWER « R E A E BRI 53R
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements. EEERVE

* %

o fEFATRMFR e REMEKRTRN S

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they REEYRBHAEVEENBERZEREE
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial VS B R B H 6 R LA SRR R 4500 - Al
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. HEEEZWARAIER]  [Al @HEE
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be MEEERWMRA [AE] -
“doubtful”.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had Fi&iﬁﬁﬂi AEEAZETEESS
certain concentrations of credit risk as 16% (2021: ' ZKE EMESZEKRIEFYE
36%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from 16% —-= f—i 36% ) 75 Fa 7N & B i
the Group's two largest customers. ANE P
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's BRASEEAEE S EWFIE K EWEIE
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills MARNEERBRNEZ S EURHEE
receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the financial R FEIRTITZE17 ©
statements.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

164

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internally generated cash flows from operations. The
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure that it has adequate financial resources in
meeting its financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

32.

TREREREREREEE)

RBESRR

AEEEEEBREMREMSANELS
Remngsien@tREiE zRn
T ARBERRIEERE SN
NFERE R RN 5B IR Al ERE
MR-

AEBRBRERRRE KRR KD
TREBEIHBERET

2022 —E-CF
On demand
and less
than 1year 1tob years Total
RERRK
PR—F —ZhF #at
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET FET FET
Trade payables Z 5 e FRIE 20,759 - 20,759
Financial liabilities included st A E fth fE {5018 K2
in other payables and EAERANTREE
accruals 3,126 - 3,126
Lease liabilities HEEBE 5,618 4,670 10,288
29,503 4,670 34,173
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. dRIAMEEBZERBEK(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REES R (&)
2021 —EB-—F
On demand
and less
than 1 year 1to 5 years Total
RERK
DR—F —ZERF HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FH&TT
Trade payables B S ER T IE 27,091 - 27,091
Financial liabilities included &t A E fih f& {5 7038 &
in other payables and [EtEANTRAR
accruals 1,659 - 1,659
Lease liabilities HERE 4,431 1,428 5,859
33,181 1,428 34,609
Capital management EXER

The primary objectives of the Group’'s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

AEEEAEEZTEAR/REAE
EREEENRE I RERRIENEARL
EOPXFEERBRERRREERA
k-

NEEE A A E AR B R ARRIE ER
EREHBEEEERNERRELFE -
RIS AREARERE  AEENER
BIRAN FREME « RRRREEAR
HEITH D - NEEBEESTERIN
HENHERRE RBEE_T -
F—E - F+_A=+—HILFE "
EEEAZ BIZ  HRHBFIEED
EXEIEEEDI
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33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 33. HEHERSEH

There were no significant events after 31 December BE_ZE__F+_A=+t—HEZHHK
2022 and up to the approval date of the financial WMERES AR RILHE WESEASE
statements. o

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  34. A&ARMBMR K
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of BEARRERRERARNI BT

166

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BRI
follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB A TR E = =
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 665 156
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 665 156
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries NG B 2,326 24,713
Prepayments, deposits and TERFRIE « 2e R EMEREIE
other receivables 713 742
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRRESEEY 73,431 54,700
Total current assets TmEEEAE 76,470 80,155
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Amount due to subsidiaries FEFT B A B RIA 10,814 7,022
Other payables and accruals Hin et RIa R EE R 249 222
Lease liabilities HeEaE 286 346
Total current liabilities mENEERE 11,349 7,590
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 65,121 72,565
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

34. AR EIM#EARRER (E)

2022 2021
—s== —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBERS
LIABILITIES 65,786 72,721
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRnBEME
Lease liabilities HEBE 415 =
Total non-current liabilities EmBEEEE 415 -
Net assets BEFE 65,371 72,721
EQUITY Em
Share capital A% AR 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) i (M) 61,371 68,721
Total equity = BE 65,371 72,721

The amount is less than HK$1,000.

SR P1,00087T
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

34. RQTMBAMRE ()

Note: B 7E
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AARIEEBRENT -
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B EE REtE#R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2021 R-ZT-_—F—HF—H 102,246 (26,017) 76,229
Final 2020 dividend paid BN FRERE (5,400) - (5,400)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANEZAEBIERE - (2,108) (2,108)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 HR-ZE-_—F+_A=+—HK
—Z=-_—#—H—H 96,846 (28,125) 68,721
Final 2021 dividend paid BN —FREKE (5,400) - (5,400)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FALEEIBEE - (1,950) (1,950)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_F+-A=+—H 91,446 (30,075) 61,371

35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2023.
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Jo

REEZERBRAE
Peiport Holdings Ltd.
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